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HENRY BOOT AT A GLANCE

The Sheffield-based Henry Boot Group is one of the UK’s leading property and 
construction organisations, with its four principal trading subsidiary companies 
operating in the property development and investment, land management, 
construction and plant hire sectors.

The Group’s main objective is to maximise shareholder value in the 
longer-term through active commercial development and land management, 
allied to recurring income from investment property, PFI, construction 
and plant hire activities. 

Each Group company is managed autonomously and has set objectives 
to maximise short-term profits and create valuable long-term asset backed 
opportunities in the property sector. 

PROPERTY
heNry Boot DevelopmeNts limiteD is one of the UK’s 
foremost property development companies, operating 
through five regional offices and with a reputation for 
its ability to deliver developments of lasting quality.

With its proven expertise in retail, industrial, commercial 
and leisure sectors, the company has achieved 
considerable success in recent years developing 
investment properties that have allowed the Group 
to create a retained investment portfolio.

At the same time, we have developed many schemes 
for sale to satisfy demand from investors and commercial 
occupiers looking to add to their own property portfolios.

In addition to undertaking traditional site acquisition/
development opportunities, we also work in many 
partnerships with local authorities and private companies.

heaD offiCe:
Banner Cross Hall, Sheffield S11 9PD  
t:  0114 255 5444 
e:  hbdl@henryboot.co.uk 
www.henrybootdevelopments.co.uk

maNagiNg DireCtor:
David Anderson

regioNal offiCes:
South East – London t: 020 7495 6419 
South West – Bristol t: 01454 202163 
North West – Manchester t: 0161 830 8000 
North East – Sheffield t: 0114 255 5444 
Scotland – Glasgow t: 0141 223 9090

LAND
hallam laND maNagemeNt limiteD specialises in land 
and planning related matters, and its key role is in 
the identification, promotion and delivery of new land 
development opportunities. The company’s experienced 
team work with landowners, developers, local authorities and 
other parties to take both greenfield and brownfield schemes 
through the complex planning system to realise best value.

The company has interests in over 6,700 acres of 
land, promoting over 170 schemes throughout the 
UK. It continues to have a successful record in the UK 
planning arena, in particular, embracing the changing 
policies affecting planning and housing delivery, 
environmental considerations relating to sustainable 
communities, better urban design, and the reduction 
of energy consumption and CO2 emissions.

Hallam Land Management’s environmental credentials are 
reflected in its promotion of three wind farm renewable energy 
developments, including one at High Haswell, Co. Durham, 
which has recently secured planning consent.

heaD offiCe:
Banner Cross Hall, Sheffield S11 9PD 
t:  0114 255 5444 
e:  hallamland@henryboot.co.uk 
www.hallamland.co.uk

maNagiNg DireCtor:
Bob Brown

regioNal offiCes:
South East – London t: 020 7203 6733 
South West – Bristol t: 01454 625532 
South Midlands – Northampton t: 01604 646588 
North Midlands – Nottingham t: 0115 906 1248 
North East – Sheffield t: 0114 255 5444 
North West – Sheffield t: 0114 255 5444 
Scotland – Glasgow t: 0141 773 5790



GrouP HeAD oFFICe AND reGIoNAl loCAtIoNS

PLANT
BaNNer plaNt limiteD was formed in 1958 and has 
expanded to serve the construction, industrial and 
commercial world of Yorkshire and the North Midlands 
through a network of hire centres.

It has established a well-respected reputation for its 
customer service, competitive hire rates, prompt delivery 
and, by investing annually in the latest equipment, reliable 
modern plant.

The company offers a developing range of products 
and services for sale and hire, with core activities being:

Banner Plant – contractors’ mechanical plant 
Banner Powered Access – boom and scissor lift 
access platforms 
Banner Accommodation – modular and mobile 
accommodation units 
Banner Power Tools – power tools and equipment 
Banner Airforce – compressed air solutions 
Banner Loo Hire – serviced portable or mains-connected 
toilet units

maNagiNg DireCtor:
Giles Boot

heaD offiCe: 
Dronfield, Derbyshire S18 2XS  
t:  01246 299400 
e: dronfield@bannerplant.co.uk 
www.bannerplant.co.uk

regioNal hire CeNtres:
Chesterfield t: 01246 268593 
Derby t: 01332 752608/751762 
Leeds t: 0113 240 6350 
Rotherham t: 01709 515655/511500 
Sheffield t: 01246 299400 
Wakefield t: 01924 283487

CONSTRUCTION
heNry Boot CoNstruCtioN (uk) limiteD operates primarily in 
the North and Midlands serving the construction needs of 
commerce, industry, public and local authorities. It has the 
foremost quality and environmental approvals and has the 
technical and financial resources necessary to undertake 
very challenging projects.

The breadth of company operations has been enhanced 
in recent years by expansion into partnering, framework 
and negotiated contracts within the Decent Homes, 
Prison Alliance and Local Education Authority sectors. 

Its broad portfolio of skills and versatility also enables 
it to successfully undertake traditional, management 
and design and build projects.

heaD offiCe:
Dronfield, Derbyshire S18 6XS 
t:  01246 410111 
e:  hbcuk@henryboot.co.uk 
www.henrybootconstruction.co.uk

maNagiNg DireCtor:
Mick Mosley

regioNal offiCes:
North East – Dronfield t: 01246 410111 
North West – Manchester t: 0161 273 5302

roaD liNk (a69) limiteD, a 61% owned subsidiary, with two 
other shareholders holding the remaining 39%, operates 
and maintains the A69 Newcastle-Carlisle trunk road for the 
Highways Agency under a PFI contract. The contract was 
initially for 30 years and has 18 years still to run.

heaD offiCe:
Stocksfield, Northumberland NE43 7TN 
t:  01661 842842 
e:  a69@roadlink.freeserve.co.uk

ChairmaN:
Douglas Greaves



The Henry Boot Group operates in the UK Property and 
Construction sectors.

Our key objective is to maximise long-term shareholder value 
through construction and plant hire activities, the development of 
and investment in high quality property assets and the promotion 
of new land development opportunities.
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2007 HIgHLIgHTS

  Profit before tax increased by 14% to £46.5m 
(2006: £40.8m)

  Basic earnings per share increased by 24% 
to 24.5p (2006: 19.8p)

  Final dividend proposed of 3.75p (2006: 3.32p), 
up 13%. Total for the year of 5.0p, an increase 
of 14% (2006: 4.4p)

  Return on average capital employed 28% (2006: 30%)

  Net asset value per share increased 20% to 139p 
(2006: 116p)

  Group’s investment portfolio externally valued at 
£81.5m (2006: £30.1m) with revaluation surplus 
of £18.1m (2006: £3.0m)

  Solid contribution from all Group activities

  ( Note: Comparative figures for earnings, dividends and net asset values per share have been 
restated for the 4 for 1 bonus share issue in May 2007)

   

+14%
profit before tax is £46.5m

+24%
earnings per ordinary 

share to 24.5p

+14%
total dividends per 

ordinary share to 5.0p

+20%
net asset value per 

ordinary share to 139p

FIvE YEAR RECORD
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CHAIRMAN’S 
STATEMENT

i am very pleased to report on a further 
set of impressive results. all our business 
streams have performed well in a year 
which saw the economic backdrop to 
our business become more uncertain. 
successive rises in interest rates have 
dampened both the housing and property 
investment markets. however, as yet, 
we have not seen any impact on the 
demand for quality land or on the 
prudent yields we have used in our 
development appraisal process. 

Throughout our national network of offices, 
our teams use their local knowledge 
to create valuable opportunities in land 
promotion and property development. 
Whilst profits from our construction division 
and the investment property rentals add 
an ever increasing, recurring annual 
income, we are, at heart, a deal driven 
business in both our property development 
and long-term land promotion activities. 

on the whole, our markets in 2007 
remained fairly robust. land with planning 
consent that we brought to the market 
was in strong demand and values achieved 
were as anticipated. the yields on property 
developments completed during the 
year were in line with those used in the 
development appraisals and, therefore, 
we achieved the capital values expected 
at the outset. our construction company 
had a very good year with decent homes 
initiatives, work for the prison service and 
general contracting work all contributing 
to a solid result. our pfi project running 
the a69 again provided a healthy return 
and plant hire benefited from strong 
construction activity and a stable 
depot line-up. 

Results
turnover was £124.8m (2006: £142.3m) 
reflecting fewer land transactions with 
lower acreages and values completed in 
the period. Profit before tax increased 14% 
to £46.5m (2006: £40.8m) as these lower 
sales were offset by valuation gains and 
development sales demonstrating our 
broad-based mix of profit drivers. Included 
within pre-tax profit, the investment portfolio 
showed a revaluation surplus of £18.1m 
(2006: £3.0m) of which £16.8m arose from 
the valuation of our shopping centre at 
Ayr. Property disposal profits were £3.5m 
(2006: £1.4m), mostly attributable to the 
sale of our ripon gateway site prior to 
development. basic earnings per share 
increased 24% to 24.5p (2006: 19.8p), 
helped by a lower percentage tax charge 
compared to 2006. total net assets 
increased 20% to £182.2m (2006: £152.2m), 
representing 139p per share (2006: 116p). 
As expected, gearing rose to 39% with debt 
of £70.9m at the year end (2006: gearing 10%, 
debt £15.0m), as we made further investments 
in our land and development assets.

I am very pleased 
to report on a further 

set of impressive results. 
All our business streams have 

performed well in a year which 
saw the economic backdrop to our 
business become more uncertain... 

This healthy mix of business 
opportunities, coupled with our 

robust financial position, gives me 
great confidence in our long-term 

future prospects and the continuing 
delivery of value to shareholders.

“

”John Reis, ChaiRman
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DiviDenDs 
these excellent results allow the 
directors to continue the progressive 
dividend policy adopted over recent years 
and recommend a final dividend of 3.75p 
per share (2006: 3.32p) which, together 
with the interim dividend of 1.25p per 
share (2006: 1.08p), gives a total for the 
year of 5.0p (2006: 4.4p), a 14% increase. 
dividend cover remains strong at 4.9 times 
(2006: 4.5 times). The final dividend will be 
paid on 22 may 2008 to shareholders on 
the register on 9 may 2008. 

PeRfoRmanCe benChmaRking anD RetuRns
total shareholder value (tsv), calculated 
as the increase in net asset value plus 
dividends per share, created in the year 
was 28.1p per share (2006: 25.8p), a 24% 
(2006: 27%) return on opening net assets. 
although the group achieved record 
profits, earnings, net assets and dividend 
payments, it has not been immune to 
the change in sentiment towards quoted 
property and construction company 
equity prices. as a consequence, total 
shareholder return (tsr) in the period 
was -41.9p (2006: 84.4p), a -19% return 
on the opening price on 1 January 2007 
of 215p. tsr is calculated as the change 
in share price plus dividends per share. 
these returns compare to an average tsr 
of -8% on the FTSE Construction Sector, 
-41% on the Real Estate Sector and 12% 
on the FTSE Small Cap Index. 

these sectors have been chosen as the 
best comparative benchmarks against 
which to monitor our Company. 

emPloyees
on behalf of my fellow directors, 
i express my sincere thanks to all the 
group’s employees for their contribution 
towards achieving yet another excellent 
performance. it is our people who, through 
their commitment, skill and hard work, 
enable us to continue to build upon our 
outstanding long-term results record and 
i look forward to working with the team 
to achieve further success in 2008.

stRategy
the group strategy continues to focus on 
land promotion and property development, 
with the support of construction and plant 
hire activities. We recognise that the timing 
of profits from land promotion and property 
development depends on market conditions 
and is therefore uncertain. this can lead to 
variability in our income stream in any one 
accounting period. to counter this, as our 
subsidiaries create surplus funds, after 
each unit’s own investment requirements 
are met, and as prudent cash management 
allows, we will invest in those developments 
which, in our view, offer the best rental and 
capital growth opportunities. this, in turn, 
improves the balance of income arising from 
more stable, enduring activities with that 
from land promotion and development deals.

outlook
the general economic climate in which 
the business is currently operating will 
result in the property sector having to 
endure a more turbulent period than it has 
had for some time. that said, much of this 
uncertainty has already been factored into 
property equity prices, including ours.

in the current, more challenging 
environment, i believe that our outlined 
strategy continues to be the right one 
for the long-term growth of our business. 
as we progress through 2008, the group 
remains very well positioned to continue 
to profit from its broadly-based portfolio 
of assets and opportunities. We have 
a strategic land portfolio of the highest 
quality, in the right locations, which is 
steadily moving through the planning 
process and which will add to an already 
strong property development pipeline. 
Allied  to this, we continue to benefit from 
the recurring profit, cash generation and 
return on assets provided by our construction, 
pfi and plant hire businesses.

this healthy mix of business opportunities, 
coupled with our robust financial position, 
gives me great confidence in our long-term 
future prospects and the continuing delivery 
of value to shareholders.

John Reis
ChaiRman
18 March 2008

SUMMARY OF  
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
  impressive set of results

  Broadly based profit drivers

  reasonably robust market in 2007

  dividend cover 4.9 times

  28p Total Shareholder Value – a return of 24% 
on opening net asset value

  higher gearing after further net investment in land 
and development portfolios

  Confidence in long-term prospects for shareholder 
value creation
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BUSINESS REvIEw

OPERATIONS REvIEw
our long-term strategy remains largely 
unaffected by the difficult property market 
arising in 2007 and which is expected to 
continue throughout 2008. in this market, 
our ability to create profit by adding value 
to our land, either through development, 
land promotion or construction, should 
allow the Company to continue to prosper. 
the acquisition of new opportunities 
through our regional office network should 
see us enter the next positive cycle with a 
stronger portfolio of sites to capitalise on.

the promotion of land through 
the planning system can take up to 
20 years and short-term market corrections 
will always be a factor in such a long-term 
process. We remain on track to achieve 
results on an increasing number of sites, 
at the same time adding more land than 
we sell to our growing portfolio. 

our development process is underpinned 
by prudent market yield assumptions at the 
time of acquisition or appraisal. therefore, 
whilst we will not escape the effects of lower 
market values, we remain comfortable with 
the appraisals of those properties currently 
progressing through the development phase.

although the occupational market 
continues to be difficult in some quarters, 
we have found it still offers opportunities 
to a developer creating new, high quality 
space. retailer interest in our relevant 
sites remains good. The office market, 
particularly for well located, smaller units 
which are also available to owner occupiers, 
is also holding up well. the industrial 
market remains solid and once again our 
experience is that developments of smaller 
units for owner occupiers have sold well.

the construction and plant hire businesses 
saw strong demand throughout 2007 
with a broad spread of work across their 
markets and we expect this trend to carry 
forward into 2008. our pfi business which 
operates the a69 between newcastle and 
Carlisle has also performed well 
and in line with expectations.

taking each area of the business in detail:

PRoPeRty
our property division, henry boot 
developments, made solid progress 
during the year and delivered improved 
results compared with 2006. this was 
achieved through a combination of 
land sales, higher rental income, as the 
investment property portfolio increases, 
the initial valuation of new developments 
and from revaluation surpluses on our 
existing investment properties. 

although we have been aware that 
confidence in the wider property market 
had been weakening, particularly in the 
second half of 2007, we continued to 
identify opportunities in our property 
development portfolio to create shareholder 
value. our development schemes have 
to pass a tough initial appraisal process 
intended to target high returns based on 
prudent completion yield assumptions. 
this process is further supported by a 
stringent ongoing review in order to 
ensure schemes remain profitable on 
their progression through to completion. 

Jamie boot, gRouP managing DiReCtoR (seateD) with John sutCliffe, gRouP finanCe 
DiReCtoR (left) anD Douglas gReaves, exeCutive DiReCtoR (Right).
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Therefore, we have a number of significant 
schemes in progress, some due for 
completion and initial valuation in 2008, 
on which we expect to achieve a 
profitable outcome.

the most notable land sale in the year 
was at ripon where we agreed a sale to 
the food retailer, morrisons, which yielded 
a better profit than had been expected 
from the previously planned mixed-use 
development. progress continued on our 
Priory Park site in Hull and further profitable 
land disposals were made. We expect to 
make additional land and property sales 
from this site during 2008.

ayR CentRal shoPPing CentRe
our new 220,000 sq ft retail scheme 
in ayr achieved a £16.8m revaluation 
surplus that was largely booked at the 
half year and further uplifted at the year 
end. further lettings have been achieved 
to quality retailers such as river island 
and Jd sports. 

Though the Centre was not fully income 
producing at the year end, we expect to let 
the few remaining units during 2008 and to 
derive a progressive increase in car parking 
income as the scheme moves towards a 
fully let position. 

the axis, nottingham
this award-winning development is due 
for completion in mid-2008 with the final 
17,000 sq ft phase of offices, where a 
letting has been contracted to accountants, 
tenon group plc. We expect an uplift in 
valuation to arise at the end of 2008. We 
have identified this 220,000 sq ft, well let, 
mixed-use development as having good 
rental growth prospects and plan to retain 
it within the group’s investment portfolio. 
the residential element of the scheme 
was sold in 2007 to a specialist developer.

the mall, bRomley
Completion of the final construction 
phase of our 100,000 sq ft retail and office 
development in bromley was achieved early 
in 2008 and the anchor tenant, sportsworld, 

has opened for trade. once again, 
it is anticipated that this development 
will generate a valuation uplift when first 
valued at the half year 2008. The office 
accommodation and certain of the shop 
units remain unlet but we are currently 
seeing good levels of interest and 
anticipate that the remaining space, 
mainly competitively priced office areas, 
will be taken during 2008.

stoP 24 motoRway seRviCe aRea, m20
stop 24, on Junction 11 of the m20 
motorway in Kent, became the largest 
motorway service area in the country when 
the development completed and opened 
for business in January 2008. the retail 
and fast food areas are far more extensive 
than those at traditional service areas, 
with Wh smith, Julian graves, starbucks, 
Burger King and KFC amongst the nine 
tenants so far signed up. there is also 
strong interest in a further three of the 
remaining five units and we expect to 
see this investment property fully let 
during 2008.

SUMMARY OF  
BUSINESS REvIEw
  long-term strategy largely unaffected by short-term 

impacts on markets

  development portfolio underpinned by prudent market 
yield assumptions

  growing landbank and site list now with an interest 
of 6,725 acres

  Completed Ayr, revaluation £16.8m in 2007. Nottingham, 
bromley, bromborough, stoke-on-trent and stop 24 (m20) 
expected to complete in 2008

  record construction order book carried into 2008 and beyond
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OPERATIONS REvIEw ContinueD
PRoPeRty ContinueD
bRomboRough Retail sCheme
this 37,000 sq ft retail warehouse 
scheme in bromborough is fully pre-let 
to homebase and magnet. on completion, 
provided market conditions allow, this is 
a development we intend to market for 
sale. however, if the price offered does 
not meet with our expectations, we will 
retain this asset which will, therefore, 
contribute to profit either by initial 
valuation or sale during 2008.

maRkham vale business PaRk, m1
Work has continued through 2007 on site 
preparation for this 200 acre scheme 
that we are developing in partnership 
with Derbyshire County Council which 
will be providing both the new motorway 
Junction 29a and the site infrastructure. 
under our agreement, we acquire land 
after it has been brought to a standard 
whereby it can be developed and during 
2007, we completed the initial purchase 
of 61 acres. We expect the first sites to be 
developed in 2008. markham vale is an 

ideal location, situated adjacent to the 
m1 almost in the centre of the country, 
and detailed negotiations are progressing 
with a number of occupiers and also with 
potential partners to construct a 585,000 sq ft 
distribution unit.

otheR sChemes
our involvement on the Waterloo square 
retail scheme in south shields progressed 
further with preliminary site works being 
undertaken prior to the construction of 
a new 60,000 sq ft asda store which 
will be completed by late 2008. in the 
meantime, the retail complex let to bhs, 
debenhams, next and river island 
continues to perform well.

Two schemes are in hand at Clifton Moor 
retail park, york, where we are converting 
a former 18,000 sq ft nightclub into retail 
accommodation and contracts have 
been exchanged with PC World to lease 
a 25,000 sq ft retail unit. Construction is 
due to commence shortly and will be 
completed early in 2009.

further infrastructure investment was made 
to access additional land at the priory park 
scheme in hull where we are developing a 
further 60,000 sq ft of industrial space and, 
in partnership, a further 30,000 sq ft of 
offices. Additional accommodation is being 
developed on a design-and-build basis for 
freehold sale.

in stoke-on-trent, a sophisticated new 
123,000 sq ft manufacturing facility is being 
developed on our 18 acre meir park scheme, 
leased to recticel (uK) limited as their uK 
headquarters. We have a further planning 
permission on this site for 200,000 sq ft of 
industrial warehouse development and are 
in discussion with prospective tenants for 
this property.

detailed planning permission has been 
granted for our retail and leisure scheme in 
Worksop. presently, we are resolving some 
technical design issues and anticipate a 
start on site in the second half of 2008. 
tesco has taken the retail element of this 
development which will now enable the 
cinema, fast food and other leisure outlets 
to proceed.

220,000 SQ FT
aWard-Winning retail, leisure,  

oFFICE AND RESIDENTIAl 
REDEVEloPMENT SCHEME  

CoMPlETED IN NoTTINgHAM  
CITy CENTRE

UK’S LARgEST
MoToRWAy SERVICE AREA 

APPRoACHES CoMPlETIoN AT 
JuNCTIoN 11 oF THE M20 IN KENT

property Debenhams tRaDes aDJaCent 
to next anD RiveR islanD at 
ouR shoPPing CentRe in ayR
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We have completed the purchase of a 
16 acre development site in rotherham, 
with planning consent for 100,000 sq ft 
of retail and 90,000 sq ft of industrial 
space. the site is adjacent to british land’s 
parkgate retail park and we are currently 
in discussion with prospective tenants with 
the intention of securing occupiers in time 
to allow a start on site in late 2008.

two development sites have been 
acquired in Bodmin, Cornwall, one 
of which has planning consent for 
development as a 37,000 sq ft retail park 
and the second as a 50,000 sq ft trade 
park. interest has been received, not only 
from retailers and trade park occupiers, 
but from other types of prospective tenants 
and at this stage all development options 
are being investigated with a view to 
securing the highest scheme return.

at tamworth we are extending our land 
interests beyond the lower gungate retail 
scheme which we already own, with the aim 
of undertaking a substantial redevelopment 
including a large decked car park. discussions 
are ongoing with potential tenants and the 
planning authority and we expect this to 
become a significant future development.

We acquired a development site with 
detailed planning consent to create a 
27,000 sq ft extension to the baglan bay 
retail park at port talbot. We are on site 
with completion scheduled for June 2008. 
two of the four units have been pre-let to 
halfords and dreams and negotiations are 
taking place with other parties concerning 
the remaining space.

after many years of discussion, it is 
hoped that 2008 will see the finalisation 
of council plans for the redevelopment of 
beeston town centre which will enable us 
to modernise and expand our existing retail 
and residential development. beeston is 
a prosperous satellite town very close 
to nottingham university and, as a 
consequence, we are seeing strong 
interest from high quality retailers.

We purchased a small, well-located 
site in bristol where we plan to develop 
and sell eight two-storey offices totalling 
25,000 sq ft to owner-occupiers. it is intended 
to proceed with similar developments on 
land purchased at maidenhead. on the 
retail side, we are looking to progress 
sizeable schemes in partnership with 
local authorities at falkirk, burnley and 

abergavenny, though these are more likely 
to come forward after 2008. in addition, we 
have exchanged a development agreement 
with Daventry District Council for a multi-site, 
mixed-use town centre redevelopment. 
at Weston-super-mare we are working 
with the local authority on the 196,000 sq ft 
Tropicana leisure Centre scheme which 
has already seen very good tenant interest 
and we are also purchasing a small retail 
site for redevelopment. finally, towards the 
2007 year end we acquired a 7.5 acre industrial 
site in Cumbernauld which we intend to 
develop for a range of commercial uses.

Whilst we continue to investigate many 
more opportunities throughout the country, 
any new scheme has to meet our stringent 
investment criteria before a commitment 
is made to develop the site. there is little 
doubt that the current uncertainty over 
funding, particularly for speculative or highly 
leveraged situations, allied to a marketplace 
characterised by softer property yields and 
fewer buyers, will produce opportunities 
to acquire interests with potential for future 
development, but we remain very mindful 
of the risk reward equation when considering 
these opportunities. 

MARKHAM  
vALE 

200 ACRE INDuSTRIAl AND oFFICE 
SCHEME, FIRST 61 ACRES ACquIRED

MAjOR LAND 
SALE 

To MoRRISoNS CoMPlETED IN RIPoNproperty

the mall Retail anD offiCe DeveloPment 
in bRomley was substantially ComPleteD 
in the yeaR
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investment PRoPeRty
the group’s investment and owner-occupied 
properties were valued externally by 
Jones lang lasalle at 31 december 2007. 
the group’s investment portfolio was valued 
at £81.5m (2006: directors’ valuation £30.1m). 
the increase during the year largely arose 
from the completion and initial valuation of our 
Ayr Shopping Centre at £50.5m which gave 
rise to much of the increase in the revaluation 
surplus of £18.1m (2006: £3.0m). the group 
occupied properties were valued at £9.6m 
(2006: £7.4m) with the revaluation 
surplus being taken directly to reserves.

Rental inCome
We expect our rental income to increase 
significantly during 2008 as more lettings 
are secured and the schemes noted above 
reach completion. gross rents in 2008 
should exceed £7.0m and are therefore 
well on the way to our initial internal 
target of £10.0m. it is anticipated that 
rental income will continue to increase 
as rent-free periods on retail and office 
properties expire so that 2009 should 
see us another step closer to the target.

lanD
Following the record profit level achieved 
in 2006, hallam land management limited 
again produced a strong set of results 
and is well placed for a further good 
performance in 2008. after many years 
when operating within the planning regime 
has been very difficult, there are now signs 
that government actions and initiatives 
are releasing more planning consents 
and are having some impact on the 
backlog. We have been more successful 
in taking a number of opportunities through 
the planning system during 2007, with the 
majority of our applications and appeals 
achieving success. 

although the absolute values were lower 
than in 2006, profitable land sales were 
completed at prestonpans, bathgate, 
Syston, Rotherham, Sheffield, Retford 
and peterborough during the year, whilst 
at Bognor Regis a significant agency fee 
was received in respect of the planning 
promotion agreement for a site of over 
80 acres with consent for 700 units.

700 DwELLINg 
SITE SAlE SuCCESSFully ACHIEVED 

at bognor regis

1,200 DwELLINg 
PlANNINg CoNSENT 

IMMINENT FoR MAJoR SCHEME 
at biddenham, bedfordshire

land

lanD sales suCCessfully ConCluDeD 
at PRestonPans, east lothian
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land sold for residential development 
at swallownest (rotherham), oxclose 
(Sheffield) and Retford provided a 
favourable return on our investment in 
the latter part of the year. the 54 acres 
of land optioned at peterborough were 
sold to an adjacent land owner/developer 
achieving a satisfactory result after 11 years 
of planning promotion.

a major planning permission was granted 
and, late in 2007, successfully passed 
through the judicial review period without 
challenge for our holding within the eastern 
expansion area of milton Keynes. our interests 
here form approximately one-third of a very 
important 2,500 dwelling scheme and a 
sale was concluded in early march 2008.

following the receipt of a planning consent 
for 23 acres of employment land at market 
harborough, a part sale to our joint partner 
should be completed in the first half of 
2008. We expect to jointly promote and 
subsequently develop a further 240 acres 
of land held in this area in future years.

outline terms have been agreed with a 
national house builder for the sale of our 
30% interest in an 84 acre site at Melksham, 
Wiltshire. at the year end, the detailed 
agreement for sale had yet to be formalised. 
however, we anticipate completion of this 
transaction later in 2008. We purchased 
land with outline planning permission for 
114 houses at Tillicoultry, Clackmannanshire 
and, after enhancement, anticipate a sale 
during 2008.

planning has progressed well for an 
18 acre site at ampthill, bedfordshire which 
we have under option. provided the consent 
is granted in our favour, it is probable that 
we will conclude the purchase and sale 
of this land late in 2008 or early 2009.

a very large and complex land deal, 
bringing together a number of landowners, 
is well advanced at biddenham, bedfordshire, 
for a major 1,200 dwelling scheme for which 
planning consent is expected to be received 
in 2008. as a result of these complexities, 
it is likely that it will be 2009 before the 
agreements are completed and a sale 
is achieved.

planning permission has been won on 
appeal for a residential development on 
a 30 acre site in bedford and we expect 
to market this land during 2008. following 
a residential allocation, we are pressing 
for an early planning consent for industrial 
and residential development on part of 
the 92 acres of land in our ownership and 
480 acres jointly optioned at Kilmarnock. 
if we are successful in this respect, a land 
sale may be possible during 2009. We are 
also close to being awarded planning 
permission for a residential development 
on our 41 acre site in banbury. if successful, 
a sale of this land may be achieved during 
2008 although a 2009 disposal is more 
likely. planning consent for 214 dwellings 
has been granted on a 10 acre site at 
Worcester and sale of the land is planned 
in the second half of 2008.

We continue to 
investigate many more 

opportunities throughout 
the country, any new 

scheme has to meet our 
stringent investment criteria 

before a commitment  
is made… but we 

remain very mindful of the 
risk reward equation.

“

”
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BUSINESS REvIEw A land bank of high 
quality, desirable 

and deliverable sites, 
as we believe the Company’s  

to be, is vital to achieve  
success… we endeavour to  

acquire interests in land which 
house builders would put at the 

top of their acquisition lists.

“

”
OPERATIONS REvIEw ContinueD
lanD ContinueD
on appeal, our jointly owned 30 acre, 
mixed-use site close to the a1 at bowburn, 
County Durham, has been granted planning 
permission for residential development. 
Significant land decontamination and 
remediation work will be required to enable 
full implementation of the consent. however, 
outline terms have been agreed with a 
regional house builder and a sale is 
anticipated during 2008.

a revised application has been submitted 
for residential development on 27 acres of 
land at Rushpool Farm, Mansfield. The land 
was acquired some years ago and if we 
obtain a planning consent this site should 
generate a particularly healthy return on sale.

during the year, we expanded our interests 
in land allocated for a 2,900 home scheme 
outside exeter. these large schemes involve 
complex negotiations with planning authorities 
and land owners before they are available 
for sale. therefore, it is likely that this major 
scheme will come forward in the medium-term.

there has been much press speculation 
with regard to the state of the uK housing 
market and the conflicting comments 
regarding short-term demand and 
long-term undersupply. house builders 
are reporting weaker market conditions 
after the significant rise in interest rates, 
the problems in the sub-prime lending 
market and the effect this has had on 
inter-bank interest rates and the availability 
of mortgage credit. in addition, house 
builders are having to pay for local 
authority section 106 requirements which 
often equate to a de facto development 
tax of up to 20% of land value, provide an 
affordable housing content of up to 50% 
of all the dwellings in a development and 
will, from spring 2009, have to contend with 
the Community Infrastructure levy. These 
and other cost burdens being loaded 
onto residential developers will put pressure 
on their margins. in this environment, 
we believe house builders will attack their 
cost base in an effort to safeguard their 
margins. We anticipate that the price of 
land is likely to become more competitive, 
although we believe the market will continue 
to bid strongly for well located sites.

therefore, a land bank of high quality, 
desirable and deliverable sites, as we 
believe the Company’s to be, is vital to 
achieve success in the more difficult market 
conditions anticipated over the next year 
or two. at the end of 2007, we held interests 
in a total of 6,725 acres of land, of which 
1,660 were owned, 3,712 were optioned 
and 1,353 were held under agency 
agreements in over 170 schemes 
throughout the country. having disposed 
of 184 acres in 2007, we added 409 acres 
to our portfolio to show a net increase of 
225 acres during the year. We continue to 
actively seek out further opportunities and, 
almost without exception, good progress 
is being made taking schemes through the 
planning process. our teams throughout 
the country endeavour to acquire interests 
in land which, even in the most difficult of 
markets, house builders would put at the 
top of their acquisition lists and we remain 
optimistic that we can continue to achieve 
attractive returns into the future.
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ConstRuCtion
Henry Boot Construction (uK) limited 
achieved another operationally successful 
and profitable year as we continued to 
benefit from our policy of carefully selecting 
the type of building sector contracts carried 
out and minimising our exposure to risk 
wherever possible.

Competition in the marketplace 
remained strong, but we were well 
served by continuing to deliver high levels 
of quality workmanship, customer service 
and satisfaction through a well trained and 
experienced workforce. We were short listed 
for the 2007 Regional Contractor of the year 
by ‘Contract Journal’, the national industry 
magazine. the development of company 
operations during the year was enhanced 
by the further expansion of key partnering, 
framework and negotiated contracts, 
predominantly in the decent homes, 
prison and education sectors. 

our involvement in social housing 
refurbishment increased substantially 
when we were appointed as one of 
the construction partners to deliver 
a six year, £300m decent homes 
improvement programme involving 
the upgrade of some 22,000 houses for 
st leger homes, a company formed by 
Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council. 
in addition, we continue to work alongside 
partner contractors on three other major 
Decent Homes schemes – for Sheffield 
City Council on the largest project of 

its type in the country, managed by Sheffield 
homes, for rotherham metropolitan borough 
Council on a 22,500 homes programme 
being administered by 2010 rotherham 
and for Hull City Council on the improvement 
of 336 flats within three multi-storey tower 
blocks. With the exception of hull, it is 
anticipated that these projects will 
continue over a three to six year period.

as a result of our preferred alliance 
Contractor Agreement with the National 
offenders management service, we carried 
out a number of upgrade and refurbishment 
contracts within secure establishments 
during the year. looking ahead, we have 
secured several new projects, with others 
currently in negotiation, and these will 
provide good levels of growth within 
this sector.

the year also saw new educational facilities 
completed under a framework agreement 
with Cheshire County Council, with others 
in the course of construction. We are also 
partners under similar agreements with 
Derby City Council and lancashire County 
Council for non-housing and educational 
refurbishment and new build schemes. 
in rotherham, we undertook a number 
of school extension and modernisation 
projects through our involvement in the 
Rotherham Construction Partnership. 
in addition, work started on the construction 
of a new 60-bed residential care home 
at dinnington, near rotherham.

ONE OF THE 
UK’S LEADINg
CoNTRACToRS IN DECENT HoMES 
SoCIAl HouSINg REFuRBISHMENT

wINNER 
oF HEAlTH & SAFETy (CDM) AWARD 

PRESENTED By CoNSTRuCTINg 
ExCEllENCE, yoRKSHIRE AND HuMBER

construction eleven-aCRe state-of-the-aRt 
Dobbies gaRDen CentRe anD Retail 
sCheme, baRlboRough, sheffielD

our general Works division achieved 
further growth in its mainstream activity 
of civil engineering contracts in the 
industrial and water sectors. this was 
once again augmented by increasing 
business in smaller contracts across 
various sectors. as ever, a key feature 
of the division’s success was its ability 
to secure repeat work for satisfied clients.

important contract completions 
achieved in the year included an 11 acre 
state-of-the-art garden centre and retail 
scheme for Dobbies garden Centres 
at Barlborough, Sheffield, and a major 
refurbishment of the drakehouse retail park, 
Sheffield for Hammerson Plc. These 
projects were completed on time and 
budget and we hope to undertake further 
projects for these clients in the future.

RoaD link (a69) holDings limiteD
our 30 year pfi contract to operate 
and maintain the A69 Newcastle-Carlisle 
trunk road for the highways agency in 
which we have a 61.2% stake continues 
to perform well. the planned maintenance 
programme continues to be implemented 
in both an efficient and cost effective 
manner and the priority objective of 
providing a safe, free-flowing highway 
is being achieved.
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RoaD link (a69) holDings limiteD
ContinueD
throughout the contract we have 
been prompt in attending to repair when 
maintenance items have arisen. as a result, 
the indications are that we are benefiting 
from a reduction in the rate of deterioration 
in both the road’s surfacing and underlying 
structure. This will enable us to fulfil our 
future contractual repair obligations more 
cost effectively than was envisaged in the 
original project plan.

statistics show that, during year 11 
of our 30 year contract, that part of the 
a69 for which road link is responsible 
carried vehicles over a total of 553 million 
vehicle kilometres.

Plant
our plant hire business, banner plant 
limited, delivered a strong trading 
performance, particularly in the second 
half, arising from healthy demand from 
all segments of the construction industry, 
allied to targeted capital investment and 
increased efficiency which resulted in 
high levels of plant utilisation.

increasing capital investment within key 
product categories – large industrial air 
compressors, accommodation units 
and powered access equipment – has 
undoubtedly expanded the company’s 
client base and its reputation as a leading 

regional operator in its field. We also 
continued our replacement programme 
for general plant items, increasing the hire 
fleet by a further 10% overall. 

the year’s outstanding depot performance 
was from the powered access centre based 
in rotherham which, helped by strong 
capital investment, posted a record profit 
for any of our hire centres. We relocated 
and enlarged our hire centres in Wakefield 
and Derby during the first half of the year 
and, although turnover was affected 
because of the initial inconvenience of the 
relocation, by mid-year both centres had 
re-established their operational base and 
were trading well. towards the end of the 
year, we efficiently integrated the leeds and 
bradford tool hire depots onto one location.

As ever, efficient administration is at 
the heart of any successful business 
and, having introduced new financial 
systems in 2006, we reorganised our 
finance function which, together with 
a much improved credit control system, 
led to lower bad debts and receivables 
as a percentage of turnover and therefore 
improved cash flow over the year.

looking to 2008, our customers have 
carried good construction order books 
into the current year and we feel we 
are well positioned to cope with any 
uncertainties in the market in 2008.

FURTHER 10% 
INCREASE

IN HIRE FlEET CAPITAl INVESTMENT

RECORD 
PERFORMANCE 

from hire of poWered 
ACCESS EquIPMENTplant

oveR-the-CounteR sales anD aDviCe 
at the new hiRe CentRe in DeRby
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FINANCIAL REvIEw
PRofit anD loss 
net revenue for the year was £124.8m 
(2006: £142.3m) as higher construction 
revenues were offset by lower land sales 
as fewer transactions were brought to 
market. Profit before tax increased 14% 
to £46.5m (2006: £40.8m) after inclusion 
of the property revaluation surplus of 
£18.1m (2006: £3.0m), largely arising 
from Ayr. Realised profits on the sale 
of investment properties and properties 
under construction, mostly arising from the 
sale of ripon, were £3.5m (2006: £1.4m). 
administrative and pension expenses were 
£0.3m higher at £13.6m (2006: £13.3m) 
primarily resulting from the investment in 
additional headcount across the group, 
offset by slightly lower pension expenses. 

Comparing the segmental profit 
analysis shows that the property 
and land development profits, including 
the initial revaluation of completed 
developments, increased by 23% 
to £47.3m (2006: £38.6m). 

Within this caption, land trading profits 
were £22.9m (2006: £28.0m) and 
property development and investment 
profits were £24.4m (2006: £10.6m). 
Construction division profits were stable 
at £7.6m (2006: £7.6m) and central costs 
slightly higher at £4.5m (2006: £4.3m).

Basic earnings per share were 24% higher 
at 24.5p (2006: 19.8p). total dividend 
payable for the year rises 14% to 5.0p 
(2006: 4.4p), with dividend cover increasing 
to 4.9 times (2006: 4.4 times).  

finanCing anD geaRing
as anticipated, net interest costs 
increased to £3.8m (2006: £1.1m) as we 
made significant investments in the land, 
development and investment portfolios. 
interest cover, expressed as the ratio of 
profit from operations (excluding the 
valuation movement on investment 
properties and disposal profits) to interest, 
was eight times (2006: 35 times). although 
higher than last year, interest expenses are 
likely to fall in 2008 as the combination of 
lower average debt levels and anticipated 

interest rates combine to reduce cost. 
no interest incurred during the year or 
the previous year has been capitalised 
into development costs.

the aforementioned investment in our 
asset base saw year end borrowings 
increase to £70.9m (2006: £15.9m). 
gearing on net assets of £182.2m 
was 39% (2006: net assets £152.2m, 
gearing 10%). All borrowings continue 
to be from facilities linked to floating 
rates or short-term fixed commitments. 
Consideration is given to the need for 
alternative, longer-term funding as and 
when appropriate. however, longer-term 
funding is currently not considered necessary 
as strong operational cash flows anticipated 
in 2008 are expected to reduce debt and 
therefore gearing during the year.

We continued to benefit 
from our policy of carefully 

selecting the type of building 
sector contract carried out and 
minimising our exposure to risk 

wherever possible. 
“

”
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FINANCIAL REvIEw ContinueD
taxation
the tax charge for the year is £13.7m 
(2006: £14.0m) representing a charge of 
29.4% (2006: 34.3%). The lower percentage 
charge primarily arises from lower levels 
of disallowed construction expenses 
compared with 2006. deferred tax has 
been calculated at 28%, being the rate 
expected to be applicable at the date 
the actual tax will arise.

Cash flow
the strategy of retaining investment 
properties alongside the development 
portfolio resulted in cash outflows of £55.0m 
after net expenditure of £52.5m on property, 
plant and equipment and £23.9m on land 
holdings, in particular milton Keynes. net 
cash inflow from operating activities 
reduced to £4.0m (2006: £26.2m) after 
significantly higher net investment in working 
capital of £13.1m (2006: £4.0m), increased 
interest costs and higher taxation payments 
of £13.5m (2006: £11.0m), primarily arising 
from higher taxable profits in 2006, and 
payments on account for 2007 profits. 
These outflows were only marginally 

offset by property disposals of £7.5m, 
compared to £16.3m in 2006. dividends 
paid, including those to minorities, totalled 
£7.2m (2006: £6.1m) as we continued 
our progressive dividend policy.

balanCe sheet 
the policy of progressive investment 
in the development portfolio noted in 
this business review underlies the £55.3m 
increase in property, plant and equipment 
to £154.9m. it is anticipated that this 
investment will continue during 2008 
as we finally complete developments 
at bromley, nottingham, saltwood, 
bromborough and stoke-on-trent, whilst 
commencing developments at markham 
vale, port talbot, bristol and maidenhead. 
the inclusion of ayr in the investment 
portfolio was the main change behind the 
increase in value to £81.5m (2006: £30.1m). 
the total investment in non-current assets 
stood at £248.5m (2006: £143.3m). net 
current assets reduced £88.2m to become 
net current liabilities of £19.6m (2006: net 
current assets £68.6m) due to the increase 
in trade payables and borrowings. non-current 
liabilities also reduced by £13.0m as 
non-current borrowings reduced to £17.6m 

(2006: £28.1m) and the pension scheme 
deficit fell to £22.5m from £25.8m. Net 
assets increased £30.0m to £182.2m 
(2006: £152.2m) and net asset value per 
share increased 20% to 139p (2006: 116p).

Pension sCheme
the annual ias 19 valuation of the 
defined benefit pension scheme 
showed the scheme deficit reducing 
to £22.5m (2006: £25.8m) at the year 
end. the deferred tax asset associated 
with this was £6.3m from £7.7m last year. 
Adding back this net deficit of £16.2m 
(2006: £18.1m) to net assets, the 2007 
deficit equates to 8.2% of equity 
shareholders’ funds (2006: 10.7%). 
The reduction in the deficit benefited 
from an increase in long-term interest 
rates and the level of commutation, 
offset by increases in the scheme 
mortality assumptions. the scheme’s 
assets performed well in the period 
and the trustees took the opportunity 
to switch part of the scheme’s holdings 
from equities to debt during the year. 
the scheme actuary performed the 
triennial valuation at 1 January 2007 
which showed a deficit of £8.8m. 

STRATEgY
  Continue to invest in strategic landbank replenishing 

current holdings of 6,725 acres
  prudently grow the development portfolio
  increase our investment portfolio and rental income 

with those developments offering the best rental 
and capital growth

  to provide shareholder returns through a high return on 
capital employed and a combination of increasing dividends 
and growing net asset value per share
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The comparatively lower deficit 
than that calculated under ias 19 
is principally due to the allowance for 
equity out-performance in the triennial 
valuation (not allowed in the ias 19 
calculation). in the scheme each 
0.1% increase in assumed long-term 
investment return reduces the scheme 
deficit by about £3.0m. The Company has 
agreed a recovery plan with the trustees of 
the scheme which includes the provision 
of an “on demand” letter of credit for £7.0m 
and additional annual contributions of 
£0.7m, with the 2007 contribution charged 
in the year. The defined benefit scheme is 
closed to new entrants and new employees 
are offered a defined contribution scheme. 

key Risks
in common with all organisations 
the group faces risks which may affect 
its performance. these are general in 
nature and include: obtaining business on 
competitive terms, retaining key personnel, 
successful integration of new business 
streams and market competition. the group 
operates a system of internal control and 
risk management in order to provide 

assurance that we are managing risk 
whilst achieving our business objectives. 
no system can fully eliminate risk and 
therefore the understanding of operational 
risk is central to the management process 
within henry boot. the long-term success 
of the group depends on the continual 
review, assessment and control of the 
key business risks we face. to enable 
shareholders to appreciate what the 
business considers are the main 
operational risks, they are briefly 
outlined below.

DeveloPment – not developing marketable 
assets for both tenants and the investment 
market on time and cost effectively. 

lanD – the inability to source, acquire 
and promote land would have a detrimental 
effect on our strategic land bank and 
income stream. prices may be affected 
by changes in government legislation 
and taxation. 

investments – not identifying and retaining 
assets which have the best opportunity for 
long-term rental and capital growth. this is 
an ongoing process with regular reviews of 
the assets and market conditions and must 
be undertaken dispassionately to achieve 
best value. 

inteRest Rates – significant 
upward changes in interest rates affect 
interest costs, yields and asset prices 
and reduce demand for commercial 
and residential property.

tReasuRy – the lack of readily available 
funding to either the Company or third 
parties to undertake property transactions. 
due to the group’s strong operational cash 
flow we retain a flexible funding structure 
with our three banking partners. detailed 
cash requirements are forecast up to 
15 months in advance. financial instruments 
and longer-term funding instruments are 
considered where applicable and any 
short-term positive cash balances are 
placed on deposit.

THE gROUP HAS THE FOLLOwINg 
KEY RESOURCES
  our people
	our development portfolio
  our strategic landbank
  our construction activities
  our robust financial position

AND FACES THE FOLLOwINg KEY RISKS
  property development
  land values
  property investment
  interest rates
  treasury management
  the planning regime
  personnel
  environmental
  economic
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key Risks ContinueD
Planning – increased complexity, cost 
and delay in the planning process may 
slow down the project pipeline. the recently 
announced Community levy may have a 
detrimental effect on the supply of land 
being brought to market by landowners 
and may impact on market pricing of 
land by house builders.

PeRsonnel – the attraction and retention 
of the highest calibre people with the 
appropriate experience is crucial to our 
long-term growth in the highly competitive 
labour markets in which we have to work.

enviRonmental – the group is 
inextricably linked to the property 
sector and environmental considerations 
are paramount to our success. therefore 
our interaction with the environment and 
the agencies that have an over-arching 
responsibility has got to be positive at 
all times in order to achieve best value. 

stricter environmental legislation will 
increase development costs and therefore 
could impact on profitability if capital values 
do not increase to reflect this more efficient 
energy performance.  

eConomiC – we operate solely in the uK 
and are closely allied to the real estate, 
house building and construction sectors. 
a strong economy with strong tenant 
demand is vital to create long-term growth 
in rental and asset values whilst at the 
same time creating a healthy market for 
the construction and plant hire divisions. 

key PeRfoRmanCe inDiCatoRs (kPis)
each business unit within the group 
is required to establish targets at the 
beginning of each financial year against a 
broad range of financial and non-financial 
indicators. the managing director of each 
subsidiary reports on progress at board 
meetings every two months. the three main 
board executive directors attend these 
meetings and are able to assess whether 

each unit is performing in accordance with 
its plan throughout the year. the Kpis differ 
in each subsidiary with the exception of 
financial targets which focus on profitability 
growth, cash generation and levels of debt, 
forecast cash requirements, return on 
capital employed, shareholder return 
and asset value created. We also review 
how economic conditions and changes 
in legislation may affect individual 
business units. 

in addition to this we review a range of 
specific indicators within each business 
unit, the main ones are as follows:

lanD – the size of the strategic land bank, 
the split between owned and optioned land, 
the extent to which we have full or outline 
planning consent and the number of 
residential units or commercial space 
contained in those consents.

gLOSSARY OF TERMS
  Profit before tax – as disclosed in the Income Statement

   earnings per share – basic earnings per share as disclosed 
in the income statement

  gearing – net borrowings as a percentage of net assets

  Return on capital – profit before tax as a percentage of average capital  
employed (being opening and closing net assets)

  net assets per share – net assets divided by the number of shares in issue

  dividend cover – basic earnings per ordinary share divided by dividends 
per ordinary share

KPI 2007 2006 2005 2004

Profit before tax £46.5m £40.8m £30.2m £23.2m

earnings per share 24.5p 19.8p 15.6p 12.9p

gearing 39% 10% 16% Nil

return on capital 28% 30% 26% 22%

net assets per share 139p 116p 94p 84p

dividends per share 5.0p 4.4p 3.8p 3.3p

dividend cover 4.9 times 4.5 times 4.1 times 3.9 times

( Note: Comparative figures for earnings, net assets and dividends per share have been restated 
for the 4 for 1 bonus issue in may 2007)
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DeveloPments – the expected investment 
in developments, expected completed 
value and anticipated yields, rents and 
rental growth, levels of tenant demand 
and unlet space, new investment and 
development opportunities and health 
and safety matters.

ConstRuCtion – workload forecasts and 
capacity utilisation in relation to plan, tender 
opportunities and wins, health and safety 
and environmental matters and contract 
completion, sign off and financial closure.

Plant hiRe – activity levels by depot and 
class of asset, health and safety matters 
and return on capital employed which, 
in turn, drives asset investment decisions.

gRouP – at group level the business 
units’ performance against expectations 
forms an integral part of the reporting 
criteria. in addition the highlighted group 
performance indicators are reported on 
at each meeting. 

ResouRCes
the group has the following key 
resources to assist it in the pursuit 
of its key objectives.

ouR PeoPle
the group’s foremost asset is its 
employees. their skill, commitment, 
drive and enthusiasm are vitally important 
to the long-term success of our business. 
We succeed in the delivery of shareholder 
value because our people, individually, 
achieve the targets set for them. 

they source and acquire land, promote 
planning consents; acquire, develop, 
manage or sell investment properties 
and; service constructors and refurbish 
and construct buildings. 

ouR DeveloPment PoRtfolio
We have an extensive geographical 
spread of some 30 opportunities within 
the uK, to develop or redevelop sites 
across the retail, leisure, office and 
industrial sectors. the current portfolio 
should allow us to maintain current 
activity levels for at least three years.

stRategiC lanD bank
at the year end we owned over 1,660 acres 
and had interests in a further 5,065 acres 
through option or agency agreements 
which give us the right to promote a 
planning consent and share in the benefit 
created on ultimate disposal. We anticipate 
that the size of this land bank will grow in 
future years and represents a significant 
future profit opportunity to the group.

ConstRuCtion aCtivities
the construction business works on an 
order book of between one and two years, 
though several of the framework contracts 
it has won are spread over a period up to 
five years. our plant hire business operates 
from seven locations and has a modern, 
well maintained, fleet of assets servicing the 
construction sector. furthermore we operate 
our own delivery fleet to ensure that our 
customers’ requirements are satisfied quickly.

Robust finanCial Position
We have well developed, long-term 
relationships with our three key funding 
partners. the land bank, development 
and investment property assets are held at 
cost and have been acquired from retained 
resources providing us with the capability 
to gear up if necessary. Whilst we continue 
to achieve high return on capital employed 
we will retain a healthy dividend cover level 
and reinvest in our activities to create better 
long-term shareholder returns.

Jamie boot
gRouP managing DiReCtoR
18 March 2008

John sutCliffe
gRouP finanCe DiReCtoR
18 March 2008

Douglas gReaves
gRouP exeCutive DiReCtoR
18 March 2008
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CORPORATE SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY Corporate social 

responsibility plays 
a major part in our 
operational ethos. 

Our key resource is 
our employees and we  
invest heavily in their  

personal development.

“

”
Corporate social responsibility plays 
a major part in the operational ethos of 
the henry boot group of companies and, 
indeed, has done so since the founding 
of the original business.

RESPONSIBILITIES TOwARDS EMPLOYEES
our key resource is, of course, our 
employees and, by way of facts and 
figures, at 31 December 2007 we employed 
615 people and during the year we recruited 
252 people. A profile of our employees 
showed that:

 18.4% were female

 6.4% were part-time

  1.6% reported that they were 
from an ethnic minority

  0.97% declared that they had a disability

  the average length of service was 
twelve years

  40% had more than five years’ service

in terms of investing in our 
employees through learning and 
personal development, crucial to 
our ability to achieve our business 
objectives and remain competitive:

  our 615 employees spent a total of 
753 days on formal off the job training, 
in addition to extensive on the job 
learning opportunities and coaching that 
is provided in the normal course of work

  31 (5%) of our employees 
were sponsored in studying 
for professional qualifications

  we signed the government backed 
‘skills pledge’ which commits us 
to encouraging and supporting 
all employees to achieve at least 
a National Vocational qualification 
at level 2

  we spent an average of £270 per 
employee on training and development, 
in line with the median private sector 
spend per employee reported by 
the Chartered Institute of Personnel 
& development

other employee related initiatives during 
the year included:

  the introduction of pre-employment 
medicals to ensure a candidate’s health 
meets the requirements of the job

  the updating of all employee 
handbooks to ensure compliance 
with current legislation and best 
practice and to fully communicate 
all benefits available to employees

  we now carry out exit interviews for all 
leavers and act, as appropriate, on the 
information they provide
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Cornerstones of our employment 
policies are:

  to employ a workforce that reflects 
the diversity of our society

  to provide equal opportunities for all, 
regardless of age, gender, race, religion, 
disability, nationality, sexual orientation 
and belief

  to recognise that effective employee 
communication and consultation are 
essential in achieving our business 
objectives. information on the progress 
and activities of the Company and the 
external financial and economic factors 
affecting it, both from sources in the 
public domain and those published 
internally, are readily made available 
to employees in a variety of ways

CORPORATE gOvERNANCE RESPONSIBILITIES
Details of the Company’s corporate 
governance policies and its adherence 
to ‘The Combined Code on Corporate 
governance’ issued by the financial 
Reporting Council, are set out on 
pages 32 to 34.

COMMUNITY RESPONSIBILITIES
during the year we continued to be very 
active in our support of a wide range of 
charities and good causes and have 
focussed on the following:

south yoRkshiRe Community founDation
We have a long standing sizeable 
financial commitment to the South yorkshire 
Community Foundation, a charitable grant 
giving organisation assisting locally based 
charities and voluntary community groups, 
some of which are in the most deprived 
areas in england. Within the foundation 
we established the henry boot endowment 
fund and the henry boot fund for sport. 
in the past year grants from these funds 
have been made to organisations such 
as Pitsmoor Citizens Advice Bureau, 
Conisborough & Denaby Community 
Festival Committee, Waldershelf Choral 
Society, Rotherham Junior Football Club and 
barnsley & district referees association.

give-as-you-eaRn sCheme
as ever, we continue to match, 
£1 for £1, all donations made by  
employees under this scheme, 
also known as payroll giving. 
a wide range of local, national 
and international charities are 
supported this way and include 
household names, as well as more 
specialist ones, such as ethiopiaid, 
Sheffield’s St luke’s Hospice and 
Zimbabwe a national emergency. during 
the year the Company was presented 
with a payroll giving silver award by 
the institute of fundraising ‘in celebration 
of the organisation’s decision to foster 
a culture of philanthropy and committed 
giving in the workplace’.

aD hoC Donations
With about 190,000 registered charities 
in the uK, quite naturally, we receive a 
considerable number of requests for 
donations, some of which we are able 
to support on a one-off basis, especially 
where there is some association with our 
employees or the particular areas of the 
country in which we operate. in this regard, 
we gave support in the year to numerous 
charitable organisations as diverse as 
derbyshire Wildlife resources, help for 
Heroes and Sheffield Autistic Society.

to marK national tree WeeK, 
henry boot made donations 

To SHEFFIElD SCHoolS AND 
helped pupils to plant trees 

for the future

hallam land management 
sponsored the provision of a 

Wildlife haven at prestonpans 
SCHool, EAST loTHIAN

HENRy BooT CoNSTRuCTIoN (uK) 
WoN THE HEAlTH & SAFETy (CDM) 

AWARD PRESENTED By CoNSTRuCTINg 
ExCEllENCE, yoRKSHIRE AND HuMBER

R
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CORPORATE SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY

COMMUNITY RESPONSIBILITIES ContinueD
sPonsoRshiP
our sponsorship activities are also many 
and various and in the past year included 
the derbyshire greenwatch awards aimed 
at encouraging good practice in both 
wildlife and built conservation, a number 
of charitable events sponsored by our 
Ayr Central shopping centre and even 
the sponsoring of Christmas lights for a 
residents’ association adjacent to our 
meir park development in stoke-on-trent. 
henry boot has a number of long standing 
formal corporate sponsorships of 
organisations such as headway, the 
brain injury charity, and the lighthouse 
Club, the construction industry charity.

HEALTH AND SAFETY RESPONSIBILITIES
set out below is the henry boot safety 
policy statement, the key document 
describing our health and safety 
philosophy and responsibilities:

safety PoliCy statement
Henry Boot PlC is committed to achieving 
excellence in safety, health and welfare 
management and recognises the key role 
this excellence plays in the successful and 
cost effective management of the business. 
it is the policy to maintain a healthy and 
safe working environment for all our 
employees and any persons who may be 
affected by our assets and undertakings.

the principles of safety management 
throughout the group of Companies are 
based upon the identification of the inherent 
risks associated with our activities and the 
application of sensible and practical control 
measures that eliminate or reduce risk to 
an acceptable level.

to achieve the objectives of this policy 
Henry Boot PlC and its subsidiary 
companies are required to:

  implement and maintain management 
systems that ensure the effective 
planning, organisation, control, 
monitoring and review of health 
and safety measures

  assess and manage the risks to the 
health and safety of our people and 
any others that may be affected by 
our undertakings

  promote best working practices 
and standards of behaviour, which 
minimise the risk of injury and 
occupational ill health

  set performance targets to achieve 
continuous improvement above and 
beyond statutory requirements relating 
to health and safety

KIDDIEWINKS PRE-SCHool gRouP 
AT DoNCASTER BENEFITED FRoM 
A CASH BooST AND VoluNTEERS 

from henry boot toWards 
CREATINg IMPRoVED PlAy FACIlITIES

a team from henry boot 
DEVEloPMENTS CoMPlETED THE 

25-MIlE WHITE PEAK CHAllENgE WAlK 
To RAISE £10,000 FoR THE NSPCC AND 

CANCER RESEARCH

as treasurer of the yorKshire 
REgIoN oF THE VARIETy CluB, 
JoHN SuTClIFFE (RIgHT) REPRESENTED 
ouR CoMPANy AT THEIR 2007 
yorKshire property aWards

w

w
w
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We are committed 
to achieving excellence 

in safety, health and welfare 
management and recognise 

the key role that this excellence 
plays in the successful and 
cost effective management 

of the business.

“

”
  identify individual responsibilities

  provide the necessary resources 
to effectively manage health and safety

  identify training needs and provide 
health and safety training to industry 
and nationally recognised standards

in order to assist the achievement 
of these objectives all employees 
are required to be aware and fulfil 
their responsibilities in maintaining a 
healthy and safe working environment.

group safety department will 
independently monitor compliance 
with this policy and audit activities 
against the documented procedures.

the group safety manager will continuously 
review the policy and update it accordingly 
to reflect best practice, changes in legislation 
and new knowledge, such that it remains 
at its most effective.

health anD safety management
We have a long standing and well 
respected department purely dedicated 
to health and safety, headed by a fully 
qualified and experienced health and 
safety manager, that is active in:

  advising on health and safety issues 
and policy

  monitoring new legislation and 
ensuring it is properly disseminated 
and fully understood

  compiling and updating the 
group safety manual and 
associated documentation

  inspecting and auditing the safety 
of building sites, offices, premises, 
physical assets and working practices

  compiling statistics associated 
with health and safety matters 
and benchmarking them against 
recognised comparators

  providing comprehensive health 
and safety training to all employees 
and ensuring that all training and 
knowledge is duly refreshed 

  making health and safety a separate 
agenda item for all company board 
meetings and management meetings 
and reported upon by the director of 
the Company expressly responsible 
for health and safety matters 

R
eview

 of the year
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CORPORATE SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY

a henry boot team visited 
DISPlACED FlooD VICTIMS 
IN CATClIFFE, RoTHERHAM 

Whilst their homes Were 
being repaired

ENvIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITIES
in february 2007 the senior management 
of henry boot attended a presentation 
in Sheffield given by the environmental 
activist, senator al gore, based on his 
book and film ‘An Inconvenient Truth’. 
although regarded as somewhat 
controversial by some commentators, 
his message was an extremely powerful 
one and had the effect of reinforcing the 
Company’s commitment and determination 
to meet environmental responsibilities.

Climate Change anD CaRbon management
Henry Boot Construction (uK) limited 
is currently at the forefront of the 
group’s carbon reduction activities 
and is finalising its Carbon Management 
plan under the guidance of its quality and 
environmental manager. it is anticipated 
that this will become the template for 
other companies in the group. initially, 
the operation of regional offices, transport 
fleet and site accommodation are being 
assessed and we are working with 
ECuS limited, a Sheffield based 
environmental consultancy, who are 
calculating the company’s carbon 
footprint using robust established 
methods. as well as providing us with 
an independent measure, this will provide 
a meaningful benchmark which we can 
monitor and set targets against.

other carbon reduction measures we 
have taken in the year include working 
with The Carbon Trust to identify particular 
areas of concern, amending our company 
car policy to a ‘diesel only’ fleet and 
increasing the volume of waste paper 
we recycle.

winD faRms anD zeRo CaRbon towns
hallam land management limited 
is one of the companies active in the 
promotion of zero carbon towns and 
currently is a member of two consortia 
to develop such ‘eco towns’, one next to 
Fradley Business Park, lichfield and the 
other near Clifton Moor, york. The company 
is also active in the development of wind 
farms and is promoting sites for this 
purpose at High Haswell, County Durham 
and two near selby, north yorkshire.

eneRgy PeRfoRmanCe CeRtifiCates
With the commercial sector a major 
consumer of energy, we note and welcome 
the introduction of energy performance 
Certificates (EPCs) for commercial 
properties commencing in april 2008. 
in addition to providing an energy 
consumption rating, EPCs will be 
accompanied by a report which 
contains recommendations for improving 
the energy performance of a building.

WE ARE ACTIVEly PRoMoTINg 
RENEWABlE ENERgy TECHNologIES

w

w
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Hallam Land  
Management Limited  

is one of the companies 
active in the promotion 

of zero carbon towns 
and is promoting 

the development of three 
wind farm schemes in 

County Durham and Yorkshire.

“

”

newts  biddeNhaM, bowburN, 
MiltoN KeyNes, sheffield

baDgeRs   bathGate, MiltoN KeyNes, 
sheffield

bats  ashby-de-la-Zouch, baKewell, 
chudleiGh, dewsbury, 
droNfield, rotherhaM, 
sheffield

wateRvoles  bathGate

biRDs   bartoN-upoN-huMber, 
MaNsfield

gRass snakes MarKet harborouGh

WE HAVE A CoNSTANT CHAllENgE 
To CARE FoR PRoTECTED SPECIES 
and endangered Wildlife

We have taKen steps to 
PRoTECT AND PRESERVE 
habitats in different 
PARTS oF THE CouNTRy

PROTECTED wILDLIFE 
HABITATS

R
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

NON-EXECUTIvE CHAIRMAN
John Reis, ma, 70, was appointed a 
non-executive director in 1983 and 
became Non-executive Chairman in 1996. 
he manages substantial interests in farming 
and property. he is a member of the audit 
and Remuneration Committees of the Board.

EXECUTIvE DIRECTORS
Jamie boot, 56, joined the Company in 1979 
and was appointed to the board in 1985. 
he became group managing director in 
1986. he is also responsible for the group’s 
construction and plant hire activities and is 
the board member responsible for health 
and safety matters. 

Douglas gReaves, mRiCs, mCiob, 70, joined 
the Company in 1955 and was appointed 
to the board in 1985. he is responsible for 
the group’s property development and land 
trading activities.

John sutCliffe, ba, aCa, 48, joined the 
Company and the Board in 2006 as group 
Finance Director and Company Secretary. 
he previously held a similar role with 
Town Centre Securities PlC and prior to 
that was finance director of abbeycrest plc.

NON-EXECUTIvE DIRECTORS
John bRown, fCCa, Cta, 63, was appointed 
to the board in 2006 and is the senior 
non-executive director. he was formerly the 
Chief Executive of Speedy Hire plc which he 
founded in 1977. he is also the non-executive 
Chairman of Voller Energy group PlC and 
of norcros plc and non-executive director 
of lookers plc, all london stock exchange 
listed companies, and he holds a number 
of other directorships. He is the Chairman 
of the Audit Committee and a member of 
the Remuneration Committee.

miChael gunston, fRiCs, 64, was 
appointed to the board in 2006 having 
retired as the Chief Surveyor of The British 
land Company PlC where he worked for 
nearly 32 years. He is the Chairman of the 
Remuneration Committee and a member 
of the Audit Committee.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
left to Right (baCk Row): John bRown, John sutCliffe, miChael gunston anD Douglas gReaves. 
(fRont Row): Jamie boot anD John Reis
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C
orporate governance

COMPANY ADvISERS

AUDITORS
hawsons, ChaRteReD aCCountants
pegasus house 
463a glossop road 
Sheffield S10 2qD

BANKERS
baRClays bank PlC
2 Arena Court 
Sheffield S9 2WH

lloyDs tsb bank plc
14 Church Street 
Sheffield S1 1HP

the Royal bank of sCotlanD plc
5 Church Street 
Sheffield S1 1HF

CORPORATE FINANCE
kPmg CoRPoRate finanCe
1 the embankment 
neville street 
leeds ls1 4dW

FINANCIAL PR
Citigate Dewe RogeRson
9 the apex 
6 embassy drive 
edgbaston 
birmingham b15 1tp

REgISTRARS
CaPita RegistRaRs limiteD
northern house 
Woodsome park 
fenay bridge 
Huddersfield HD8 0lA

SOLICITORS
Dla PiPeR uk llP
1 st. paul’s place 
Sheffield S1 2Jx

STOCKBROKERS
evolution seCuRities limiteD
Kings house 
1 King street 
leeds ls1 2hh

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

LONDON STOCK EXCHANgE ANNOUNCEMENTS
preliminary statement of results 2007: 19 march 2008 
first 2008 interim management statement: mid april 2008 
half yearly results 2008: end august 2008 
second 2008 interim management statement: mid october 2008 
trading update 2008: early January 2009

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2007  
AND HALF YEARLY REPORT 2008 POSTED TO SHAREHOLDERS
annual report and financial statements 2007: by 11 april 2008 
half yearly report 2008: early september 2008

ANNUAL gENERAL MEETINg
14 may 2008

DIvIDENDS PAID ON ORDINARY SHARES:
2007 final: 22 may 2008 
2008 interim: end october 2008
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual Report and the audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2007.

PRiNCiPAL ACTiviTiEs Of THE GROUP
The principal activities of the Group during the financial year remained as follows:

 Property – property development, property investment and land management

 Construction – construction, civil engineering, road maintenance under a PFI contract and plant hire

 Other – central services, head office administration and in-house leasing

REsULTs fOR THE YEAR AND DiviDENDs
The results are set out in the Group Income Statement on page 40. The principal active subsidiary companies affecting the profit 
or net assets of the Group in the year are listed in note 30 to the Financial Statements.

The Directors recommend that a final dividend of 3.75p per ordinary share be paid on 22 May 2008 to ordinary shareholders on 
the register at the close of business on 9 May 2008. This, together with the interim dividend of 1.25p per ordinary share paid on 
25 October 2007, will make a total dividend of 5.0p per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2007.

BUsiNEss REviEw
The review of the development and performance of the business of the Group during the year and the future outlook of the Group is set 
out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 2 and 3 and the Business Review on pages 4 to 17.

The Group’s policy in respect of financial instruments is set out within Accounting Policies on page 46 and details of credit risk, liquidity 
risk, cash flow risk and capital risk management are given in notes 15, 20, 21 and 22 to the Financial Statements.

sHARE CAPiTAL
Details of the Company’s issued share capital during the year are set out in note 27 to the Financial Statements.

At an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 17 May 2007 a resolution was passed whereby the authorised share capital 
of the Company was increased from £4,000,000 to £20,000,000 by the creation of 160,000,000 new ordinary shares of 10p each and a 
further resolution was passed for a bonus issue of four ordinary shares, credited as fully paid, for every one ordinary share held. These 
had the effect of increasing the number of ordinary shares in issue and the holding of each shareholder was increased on a pro rata 
basis with a corresponding adjustment to the market price of each share.

The Notice of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) on page 67 and 68 includes the following resolutions:

  an ordinary resolution (resolution 6) to renew the authority of the Directors to allot shares up to a maximum nominal amount of 
£4,341,479 being 33.33% of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital at 12 March 2008. The authority will expire on 13 May 2013 
but it is the present intention of the Directors to seek annual renewal of this authority. The Directors do not have any present intention 
of exercising the authority.

   a special resolution (resolution 7) to enable the Directors to continue to allot equity securities for cash in connection with a 
rights or other issue pro rata to the rights of the existing shareholders but subject to certain exceptions, and for any other purpose 
provided that the aggregate value of such allotments does not exceed £650,000 (4.99% of the Company’s issued ordinary share 
capital at 12 March 2008). The authority will expire on 13 May 2013 but it is the present intention of the Directors to seek annual 
renewal of this authority.

  a special resolution (resolution 8) to renew the authority of the Company to make market purchases of up to 11,055,000 of its 
own issued ordinary shares (8.48% of the Company’s issued share capital at 12 March 2008). The minimum price that may be 
paid under the authority for an ordinary share is 10p and the maximum price is limited to not more than 5% above the average of 
the middle market quotations for an ordinary share as derived from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the five business 
days before the purchase is made. The Directors will exercise the authority only if they are satisfied that it would increase the earnings 
per share of the ordinary share capital in issue and that any purchase will be in the interests of the shareholders. If the Directors do 
decide to exercise the authority, ordinary shares so acquired will either be cancelled or held as treasury shares, depending upon the 
circumstances prevailing at the time.

DiRECTORs
J S Reis, E J Boot, D Greaves, J T Sutcliffe, J E Brown and M I Gunston held office as Directors throughout 2007. Their biographical 
details are shown on page 24.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, D Greaves and J E Brown will retire by rotation at the forthcoming 
AGM and offer themselves for re-appointment.

At no time during the year has any Director had any interest in any significant contract with the Company.

DiRECTORs’ REPORT
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DiRECTORs’ iNTEREsTs
The interests of Directors in the share capital of the Company, other than with respect to options to acquire ordinary shares, were:
    At 31 December 2007  At 1 January 2007

      Non-  Non- 
     Beneficial	 beneficial	 Beneficial	 beneficial

J S ReiS    
Ordinary     6,976,185 20,585,430 7,584,520 21,977,095
Preference     3,259 8,167 3,259 8,167

e J Boot    
Ordinary     5,564,105 597,830 5,476,210 597,830
Preference     14,753 — 14,753 —

J e BRown     
Ordinary     15,000 — 15,000 —

D GReaveS    
Ordinary     414,360 — 674,385 —

M i GunSton    
Ordinary     13,000 — — —

J t Sutcliffe     
Ordinary     40,000 — 25,000 —

The comparative figures have been restated in respect of the 4 for 1 bonus issue in May 2007.

Between 31 December 2007 and 12 March 2008, being a date not more than one month prior to the date of the Notice of the AGM, 
there have been no changes in the beneficial and non-beneficial interests of any Director.

Details of Directors’ long-term incentive awards and share options are provided in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 37 and 38.

DiRECTORs’ iNDEmNiTY
Subject to the provisions of and to the extent permitted by relevant Statutes, under the Articles of Association of the Company, 
the Directors and Officers throughout the year were indemnified out of the assets of the Company against liabilities incurred by them 
in the course of carrying out their duties or the exercise of their powers.

sUBsTANTiAL sHAREHOLDiNGs
Excluding Directors, the interests of 3% or more in the ordinary share capital of the Company and notified to the Company at 12 March 2008, 
being a date not more than one month prior to the date of the Notice of the AGM, are:
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Ordinary	shares

        % of 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Number	 	issued

Rysaffe Nominees       20,382,000 15.65
FMR Corp/Fidelity       19,819,543 15.22
Hermes UK Small Companies Focus Fund       6,608,664 5.07
The Fulmer Charitable Trust       5,739,580 4.41

Rysaffe Nominees and J J Sykes are joint registered holders on behalf of various Reis family trusts, whose holdings are also included 
under the beneficial and non-beneficial interests of J S Reis.

The holding of The Fulmer Charitable Trust, a registered charity, is also included under the non-beneficial interests of J S Reis in his 
capacity as a trustee.
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GOiNG CONCERN
The Directors are satisfied that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future. For this reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Financial Statements.

EmPLOYEEs
Details of the Company’s policy on equal opportunities for disabled employees and on employee involvement are set out in the 
‘Responsibilities towards Employees’ section of the Corporate Social Responsibility report on page 19.

HEALTH AND sAfETY
The Group recognises the importance of its employees working in a healthy and safe environment and its responsibilities to clients, 
visitors, contractors, tenants, members of the public and anyone who comes into contact with our operations. Further information 
is provided in the Corporate Social Responsibility report on pages 20 and 21.

sUPPLiER PAYmENT POLiCY
The Group’s policy is for all companies within the Group to agree terms and conditions with their suppliers and subcontractors. 
Payments are then generally made on the basis of this agreement, providing the suppliers and subcontractors conform with the terms 
and conditions stipulated. At 31 December 2007 the Company had an average of 22 days’ purchases outstanding in trade creditors.

CHARiTABLE DONATiONs
Donations for charitable purposes totalled £39,017 (2006: £40,321). Details of some of the charities supported are set out in the 
Corporate Social Responsibility report on page 19. There were no political donations in either year.

CLOsE COmPANY sTATUs
So far as the Directors are aware the close company provisions of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 do not apply to 
the Company.

sTATEmENT Of DisCLOsURE Of iNfORmATiON TO AUDiTORs
The Directors of the Company who held office at the date of approval of this Annual Report as set out above each confirm that:

  so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information (information needed by the Company’s auditors in connection 
with preparing their report) of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and

  they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as Directors in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit 
information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

ADDiTiONAL iNfORmATiON fOR sHAREHOLDERs
Following the implementation of the EU Takeover Directive in the UK, the following description provides the required relevant information 
for shareholders where not already provided elsewhere in these Financial Statements. This description summarises certain provisions 
of the current Articles of Association of the Company (as adopted by special resolution on 22 May 1992 and amended by special resolution 
on 19 May 2006) (the ‘Articles’) and applicable English law concerning companies (the Companies Act 1985 (as amended) and the 
Companies Act 2006, together the ‘Companies Acts’). This is a summary only and the relevant provisions of the Companies Acts or 
the Articles should be consulted if further information is required.

ShaRe capital
The Company’s issued share capital comprises two classes of shares being, respectively, ordinary shares of 10p each (‘ordinary shares’) 
and cumulative preference shares of £1 each (‘preference shares’). Further details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 
27 to the Financial Statements. As at 12 March 2008, the ordinary shares represent approximately 97% of the total issued share capital 
of the Company by nominal value and the preference shares represent approximately 3% of such total issued share capital. The ordinary 
shares and the preference shares are in registered form. 

RiGhtS anD oBliGationS attachinG to ShaReS
Subject to the Companies Acts and other shareholders’ rights, any share may be issued with such rights and restrictions as the Company 
may by ordinary resolution decide or, if no such resolution has been passed or so far as the resolution does not make specific provision, 
as the Board of Directors for the time being of the Company (‘Board’) may decide. Subject to the Companies Acts, the Articles and any 
resolution of the Company, the Board may deal with any unissued shares as the Board may decide.

RiGhtS of pRefeRence ShaReS
The preference shares carry the following rights in priority to the ordinary shares but carry no further right to participate in profits 
or assets:

   the right to receive out of the profits of the Company a fixed cumulative preferential dividend at the rate of 5.25% per annum on the 
capital paid up thereon;

   the right on a return of assets on a winding up to payment of the capital paid up thereon together with a sum calculated at the rate 
of 6.00% per annum in respect of any period up to the commencement of the winding up for which such preferential dividend as 
referred to above has not been paid; and

  the right on a return of assets in a reduction of capital to repayment of the capital paid up thereon together with a sum equal to 
all arrears (if any) of such preferential dividend as referred to above.
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ADDiTiONAL iNfORmATiON fOR sHAREHOLDERs continueD
RiGhtS of pRefeRence ShaReS continueD
The preference shares shall not confer on the holders of them any right to receive notice of or to be present or to vote at any 
general meeting (as defined in the Articles) unless either: 

  a resolution is proposed directly affecting the rights or privileges of the holders of the preference shares as a separate class; or 

   at the date of the notice convening the general meeting the fixed cumulative preferential dividend provided in the Articles shall 
be in arrears for more than six months.

votinG
Under and subject to the provisions of the Articles and subject to any special rights or restrictions as to voting attached to any shares, 
on a show of hands every member present in person shall have one vote and on a poll every member who was present in person or by 
proxy shall have one vote for every share of which he is the holder. Under the Companies Acts, members are entitled to appoint a proxy 
to exercise all or any of their rights to attend and to speak and vote on their behalf at a general meeting or class meeting.

ReStRictionS on votinG
A member shall not be entitled to vote at any general meeting or class meeting in respect of any shares held by him unless all calls 
and other sums presently payable by him in respect of that share have been paid. In addition, holders of default shares (as defined 
in the Articles) shall not be entitled to vote during the continuance of a default in providing the Company with information concerning 
interests in those shares required to be provided (following relevant notification) under the Companies Acts.

DeaDlineS foR votinG RiGhtS
Full details of the deadlines for exercising voting rights in respect of the resolutions to be considered at the AGM to be held on 
14 May 2008 are set out in the Notice of Meeting on pages 67 and 68 of these Financial Statements. 

DiviDenDS anD DiStRiButionS
The Company may, by ordinary resolution, declare a dividend to be paid to the members but no dividend shall exceed the amount 
recommended by the Board. The Board may pay interim dividends, and also any fixed rate dividend, whenever the financial position 
of the Company justifies its payment in the opinion of the Board. If the Board acts in good faith, none of the Directors shall incur any 
liability to the holders of shares with preferred rights for any loss they may suffer in consequence of the payment of an interim dividend 
on other shares.

winDinG up
Under the Articles, if the Company is in liquidation, the liquidator may, with the sanction of an extraordinary resolution of the Company 
and any other authority required by the Statutes (as defined in the Articles):

  divide among the members in specie the whole or any part of the assets of the Company and, for that purpose, value any assets 
and determine how the division shall be carried out as between the members or different classes of members; or

  vest the whole or any part of the assets in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of members as the liquidator with the like sanction, 
shall think fit.

vaRiation of RiGhtS
The Articles specify that the special rights attached to any class of shares may either with the consent in writing of holders of three 
fourths of the issued shares of that class, or with the sanction of an extraordinary resolution passed at a separate meeting of such 
holders (but not otherwise) be modified or abrogated.

tRanSfeR of ShaReS
Under and subject to the restrictions in the Articles, any member may transfer all or any of his shares by an instrument of transfer in any 
usual form or in any other form which the Board may approve. The Board may, in its absolute discretion and without giving any reason, 
refuse to register any transfer of a share not fully paid up or any transfer of a share on which the Company has a lien. The Board may 
also refuse to register any transfer unless it is: 

  in respect of only one class of shares; 

  in favour of no more than four transferees; 

  left at the office or at such other place as the Board may decide for registration; and 

  accompanied by the certificate for the shares to be transferred and such other evidence (if any) as the Board may reasonably require 
to prove the title of the intending transferor or his right to transfer the shares.

The Articles also provide that nothing in them shall preclude title to any securities of the Company being recorded other than in writing 
in accordance with such arrangements as made from time to time be permitted by the Statutes and approved by the Board.

RepuRchaSe of ShaReS
Subject to the provisions of the Statutes and to any rights conferred on the holders of any class of shares, the Company may purchase 
all or any of its shares of any class, including any redeemable shares.

aMenDMent of aRticleS of aSSociation
Any amendments to the Articles may be made in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Acts by way of special resolution.
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ADDiTiONAL iNfORmATiON fOR sHAREHOLDERs continueD
appointMent anD ReplaceMent of DiRectoRS
The Directors shall not, unless otherwise determined by an ordinary resolution of the Company, be less than three nor more than 
15 in number. Directors may be appointed by the Company by ordinary resolution or by the Board. A Director appointed by the Board 
shall retire from office at the next AGM of the Company but shall then be eligible for re-appointment. The Board may appoint one or 
more Directors to hold any office or employment under the Company for such period (subject to the Statutes) and on such terms as it 
may decide and may revoke or terminate any such appointment. At each AGM any Director who has been appointed by the Board since 
the previous AGM and any Director selected to retire by rotation shall retire from office. At each AGM one third of the Directors who are 
subject to retirement by rotation or, if the number is not an integral multiple of three, the number nearest to one third but not exceeding 
one third, shall retire from office. In addition, there shall also be required to retire by rotation any Director who at any AGM of the Company 
shall have been a Director at each of the preceding two AGMs of the Company, provided that he was not appointed or re-appointed at 
either such AGM and he has not otherwise ceased to be a Director and been re-appointed by general meeting of the Company at or 
since either such AGM. 

The Company may by extraordinary resolution, or by ordinary resolution of which special notice has been given in accordance with 
the Statutes, remove any Director before his period of office has expired notwithstanding anything in the Articles or in any agreement 
between him and the Company. A Director may also be removed from office by the service on him of a notice to that effect signed by 
or on behalf of all the other Directors, being not less than three in number. The office of a Director shall be vacated if: 

(i) he is prohibited by law from being a Director; or 

(ii) he becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangement or composition with his creditors generally; or 

(iii) he is or may be suffering from mental disorder as referred to in the Articles; or

(iv)  for more than six months he is absent, without special leave of absence from the Board, from meetings of the Board held during 
that period and the Board resolves that his office be vacated; or

(v) he serves on the Company notice of his wish to resign.

poweRS of the DiRectoRS
The business of the Company shall be managed by the Board which may exercise all the powers of the Company, subject to the 
provisions of the Statutes, the Memorandum of Association of the Company, the Articles and any ordinary resolution of the Company. 
The Articles specify that the Board may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money and to mortgage or charge all or any 
part of its undertaking, property and assets and uncalled capital and to issue debentures and other securities, subject to the provisions 
of the Articles.

iNfORmATiON RiGHTs
Beneficial owners of shares who have been nominated by the registered holder of those shares to receive information rights under 
Section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 are required to direct all communications to the registered holder of their shares, rather than 
to the Company’s registrar, Capita Registrars, or to the Company directly.

iNDEPENDENT AUDiTORs
The auditors, Hawsons, have signified their willingness to remain in office and a resolution re-appointing them as auditors and authorising 
the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board

J t Sutcliffe
CompANy SeCretAry
18 mArCh 2008
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Financial Statements. The Directors are required to prepare 
Financial Statements for the Group in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted for use in the 
European Union and have also elected to prepare Financial Statements for the Company in accordance with IFRS. Company law 
requires the Directors to prepare such Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS, the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the 
Regulation on the Application of International Accounting Standards.

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that Financial Statements present fairly for each financial year the Group’s financial position, 
financial performance and cash flows. This requires the faithful representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions 
in accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, income and expenses set out in the International 
Accounting Standards Board’s ‘Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements’. In virtually all circumstances, 
a fair presentation will be achieved by compliance with all applicable IFRS. Directors are also required to:

 properly select and apply accounting policies;

  present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable 
information; and

  provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS is insufficient to enable users to understand 
the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial performance.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the 
financial position of the Company and the Group, for safeguarding the assets, for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities and for the preparation of a Directors’ Report which complies with the requirements of the 
Companies Act 1985 and the Listing Rules.

sTATEmENT Of DiRECTORs’ REsPONsiBiLiTiEs
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The Board continues to support and remain committed to high standards of corporate governance. However, it believes that such 
governance must reflect the unique nature of the Company, the composition of its shareholders, many of whom have strong family ties, 
as well as other stakeholders’ interests and, above all, must assist in the effective attainment of corporate objectives.

The Directors take comfort in the fact that ‘The Combined Code on Corporate Governance’ issued by the Financial Reporting Council 
(‘the Code’) recognises that not all of the provisions are necessarily relevant to smaller listed companies and those who wish to evaluate 
the Company’s corporate governance are reminded that the Code states that departures from its provisions should not automatically be 
treated as breaches.

In applying the principles of the Code, the corporate governance policies adopted by the Board broadly follow the Code’s guidelines in 
so far that they assist the overall well being of the Company and its shareholders’ interests. Pragmatism also constitutes a very important 
element in the Board’s approach and adoption of all the supporting principles of the Code is not an objective per se.

The Listing Rules require companies to make a disclosure statement in two parts in relation to the Code as follows:

PART 1: THE APPLiCATiON Of THE PRiNCiPLEs Of THE CODE
a. DiRectoRS
1.the BoaRD
Details of the Directors of the Company are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 26 and their biographical details are set out on 
page 24. J E Brown is the Senior Non-executive Director.

The main strategy of the Company is set by the Board as a whole, after consultation with, and assessment of, principal stakeholders’ 
objectives. The Board retains a Schedule of Reserved Matters which is reviewed annually to ensure that strategy and key elements 
that might affect the implementation of corporate goals are adhered to.

Those serving as members of the Audit Committee throughout 2007 were J E Brown (Chairman), M I Gunston and J S Reis. 
The Committee met three times during the year, with the Company’s auditors in attendance, during which it reviewed, amongst 
other matters, the Interim and Annual Reports, the review of internal controls, the annual management report of the auditors, 
the level of fees charged by the auditors for non-audit services, the independence and objectivity of the auditors and the proposed 
nature and scope of their work before the audit commenced. Details of fees paid for non-audit services are set out in note 3 to 
the Financial Statements. The level of these fees and the services provided are reviewed by the Committee to ensure that they 
do not threaten auditor objectivity and independence.

Those serving as members of the Remuneration Committee in 2007 were J E Brown (Chairman until 20 March 2007), M I Gunston 
(Chairman from 20 March 2007) and J S Reis. E J Boot attended in an advisory and supportive role. The Committee met twice in the year 
to review the Executive Directors’ performance, levels of pay, bonuses, LTIP grants and to consider other remuneration and employment 
matters as deemed appropriate from time to time.

All the Directors attended the seven Board meetings, the three Audit Committee Meetings, the two Remuneration Committee Meetings, 
the AGM and EGM held during the year of which they were entitled to attend.

2. chaiRMan anD chief executive
The roles of the Non-executive Chairman, J S Reis, and the Managing Director, E J Boot, are clearly defined and they act in accordance 
with the main and supporting principles of the Code.

3. BoaRD Balance anD inDepenDence
J E Brown and M I Gunston are the independent Non-executive Directors and, with the Company as a ‘smaller company’ 
defined by the Code, they meet the requirement for having two such Directors. J S Reis, who has served as Chairman since 
1996 is not deemed to be independent. He has a significant shareholding in the Company and has family ties with E J Boot, 
the Managing Director, as well as with other shareholders. However, this is seen in a positive light as obviously he aligns his 
interests with that of the Company’s ongoing success.

4. appointMentS to the BoaRD
There is currently no formal Nominations Committee. The appointments in 2006 of J E Brown and M I Gunston as Non-executive 
Directors and of J T Sutcliffe as Finance Director and Company Secretary were dealt with by the Board as a whole.

5. infoRMation anD pRofeSSional DevelopMent
All Directors are offered the opportunity and are encouraged to continue their professional development and update their commercial 
and company knowledge as required. All have access to the Company Secretary and there is in place a written procedure for all 
Directors to take independent professional advice.

6. peRfoRMance evaluation
The Executive Directors’ performance is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that they continue to contribute effectively 
to the Group’s overall objectives. The Non-executive Directors performance and commitment is kept under review throughout the year 
by the Executive Directors.

7. Re-election
All Directors are required to be re-elected at intervals of no more than three years and newly appointed Directors are subject to election 
at the AGM following their appointment.

CORPORATE GOvERNANCE REPORT
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PART 1: THE APPLiCATiON Of THE PRiNCiPLEs Of THE CODE continueD
B. ReMuneRation
1. the level anD Make-up of ReMuneRation
2. pRoceDuRe
Details of the work of the Remuneration Committee and the policies and procedures adopted with regard to Directors’ remuneration 
are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 35.

c. accountaBility anD auDit
1. financial RepoRtinG
A separate Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities is contained on page 31. The Independent Auditors’ Report is given on page 39.

The Directors’ statement in respect of the business as a ‘going concern’ is provided in the Directors’ Report on page 28.

2. inteRnal contRol
The Board operates and maintains a system of internal controls which is reviewed regularly for its effectiveness and which broadly 
accords with the Turnbull Committee guidance thereon. Whilst the system of internal control is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, 
the risk of failure to achieve the Company’s business objectives, it can only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance against material 
misstatement or loss. The system is and has been an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks 
faced by the Company. It has been in place for the year under review and up to the date of the approval of the Annual Report.

The following key processes are considered by the Board to provide effective management of significant risks to the business:

  the business organisation and structured reporting framework – each of the Company’s activities is monitored through bi-monthly 
management meetings and formal bi-monthly subsidiary company board meetings. The latter are attended by all the Board’s 
Executive Directors and chaired by the respective Board Executive Director with direct responsibility for that activity. Formal lines of 
responsibility and levels of authority are in place within each subsidiary company. Annual plans, budgets (with two out-post years) 
and performance criteria for each business are set by the Executive Directors and performance against these targets is reviewed 
monthly by the Board. Out-turn forecasts are produced each quarter. Operations on the ground are also monitored frequently by 
way of site visits by the Executive Directors

  centralised operations – specific risks and compliance issues associated with health and safety, treasury and banking operations, 
company secretarial, pensions, legal, human resources and training, public and investor relations, information communication 
technology and insurance are managed centrally and report functionally to the appropriate Executive Director responsible for that 
particular operation. Each operation reviews its own system of internal controls and reports twice a year to the Audit Committee

  business procurement – development appraisals, land purchases, options and construction contracts above a certain value require 
the authority of the Executive Directors to proceed. A strict routine covering the authorisation of capital expenditure is in place and 
Board approval is required for any corporate acquisition or disposal

  day-to-day operations – responsibility for running the day-to-day operations and for reviewing the associated systems of control 
is devolved to each subsidiary company Managing Director. Policy and procedure manuals cover major areas of their operations, 
including safety, purchasing, estimating, marketing, production and quality. The subsidiary company Managing Directors review and 
report to the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the systems of internal control in place and any matters of concern are raised 
at Board Meetings

3. auDit coMMittee anD auDitoRS
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee fully incorporate the Combined Code provisions in relation to the role and responsibilities 
of Audit Committees and are available for inspection at the Company’s registered office.

Past experiences of using a formally appointed internal audit function have not resulted in added value to the business, although this 
is reviewed annually.
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PART 1: THE APPLiCATiON Of THE PRiNCiPLEs Of THE CODE continueD
D. RelationS with ShaReholDeRS
1. DialoGue with inStitutional ShaReholDeRS
The Company is active in communicating with its thousand or so private and institutional shareholders and likewise receives 
feedback from them. It is this close relationship with shareholders which is seen as one of the particular strengths and characteristics 
of the Company. During the year a number of formal presentations were made by members of the Board to institutional shareholders. 
Our website is used to aid a two-way communication process with both present and potential investors and includes all London Stock 
Exchange announcements, presentations to analysts and press releases over the last 12 months and links to the websites of our 
four principal operating subsidiaries.

2. conStRuctive uSe of aGM
The attendance and participation of all shareholders at the AGM is much encouraged. At the AGM and EGM held in May 2007 proxies 
were received representing 72% of the number of shares in issue and is a demonstration of shareholder activism which has been at this 
level for a considerable number of years.

PART 2: COmPLiANCE wiTH THE PROvisiONs Of THE CODE
The Company has complied with the vast majority of the provisions of the Code but has not complied in full or in part with the following 
during the year:

a.1.2, a.4.1, a.4.2, a.4.3, a.4.6 
There is no Nominations Committee in place as the Board as a whole deals with the appointment of any new Directors.

a.1.3, a.1.6 
It is not felt that separate formal meetings of purely Non-executive Directors are of particular value, although they do meet informally. 
The performance of the Chairman is appraised by the Executive Directors, as are the other Non-executive Directors.

a.7.2
The Chairman, J S Reis, who has served longer than nine years as a Non-executive Director, is not subject to annual re-election. 
The Board’s view is that re-election every three years is still appropriate in view of his connections with the Company.

B.1.1 
This provision refers to Schedule A of the Code and Clause 6 of the Schedule states that, in general only basic salary should be 
pensionable. This is contrary to precedents established within the Company prior to the introduction of the Code and any change therein 
would have contractual implications in the case of E J Boot. Following contractual negotiations with E J Boot this situation will significantly 
change towards compliance in future years.

B.2.1
The Chairman is a member of the Remuneration Committee notwithstanding the fact that he was not considered independent at the time 
of his appointment as Chairman. However, his appointment as Chairman took place when the Code was not in place. The view is that he 
has a valuable role to play on this Committee.

B.2.2, B.2.3
With the Chairman as a member of the Remuneration Committee, along with the other two Non-executive Directors, their remuneration 
is set by the Executive Directors.

CORPORATE GOvERNANCE REPORT
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The Directors present the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 December 2007. A resolution to approve the Report will 
be proposed at the Company’s AGM. The auditors are required to report to the shareholders on the audited section of the Report and 
to state whether in their opinion it has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. The Report therefore has separate 
sections containing unaudited and audited information. 

UNAUDiTED sECTiON
ReMuneRation coMMittee
The remuneration of the Executive Directors is fixed by the Remuneration Committee which during the year comprised the three 
Non-executive Directors, namely J E Brown (Chairman until 20 March 2007), J S Reis and M I Gunston (Chairman from 20 March 2007), 
with the Managing Director, E J Boot, in attendance. 

The Executive Directors, E J Boot, J T Sutcliffe and D Greaves determine the remuneration of the Non-executive Directors.

To assist the Directors in determining the appropriate policy and levels of remuneration, reference is made, in addition to comparisons 
of policies with peer companies, to external publications, including the Income Data Services Limited Executive Compensation Review. 

ReMuneRation policy
The Company’s policy on Directors’ remuneration is to ensure that the Directors are competitively rewarded on a basis that is 
comparable with similar companies, taking into account the need to attract, motivate and retain Directors of an appropriate calibre 
to achieve the Company’s objectives, without making excessive payments. Directors’ basic salaries and benefits are reviewed annually 
taking into account individual performance, the recommendations of the Group Managing Director and published remuneration 
information. Benefits include the provision of a Company car or a cash allowance alternative, permanent health insurance and private 
medical insurance. The value of benefits is not pensionable and is set out for each Director in the Directors’ remuneration table. 

Non-executive Directors are remunerated on the basis of their anticipated time commitment and the responsibilities entailed in their role. 
There are no service contracts in place for the Non-executive Directors and they do not participate in any of the Company’s incentive 
arrangements. Newly appointed Non-executive Directors are expected to serve at least an initial period of three years. Terms and 
conditions relating to Non-executive Directors are available for inspection.

E J Boot and D Greaves each have a one year rolling service agreement. J T Sutcliffe does not have a service agreement. His terms 
and conditions of employment are set out in his contract of employment and include a one year notice period. Termination of these 
agreements would therefore be subject to their contractual terms and conditions.

The Executive Directors participate in an annual bonus scheme. This is calculated by reference to pre-tax profits achieved in the 
year, compared with budget, and as recommended by the Remuneration Committee. The annual bonus payable to E J Boot is partly 
pensionable, but for all other Executive Directors the bonus is not pensionable. 

The Executive Directors participate in the Henry Boot PLC 2000 Sharesave Scheme. The scheme was approved by shareholders and 
is subject to HMRC rules. A grant of options was made on 1 November 2006 at an exercise price of 155.4p, which was a 15% discount 
to the prevailing market price on the day. There are no performance criteria attached to the exercise of these options which are capable 
of exercise for a six month period three years from the date of grant.

The Executive Directors have participated in the 1996 Henry Boot PLC Long-Term Incentive Plan, which was introduced in 1996 
and which was subsequently replaced by the Henry Boot 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan in 2006. The principle of a long-term 
incentive scheme for senior executives is one that the Remuneration Committee and the Company believes readily aligns the interests 
of Executive Directors and shareholders, whilst providing the motivation and incentive for the Directors to perform at the highest 
levels. Under the provisions of the Henry Boot 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan, approved by shareholders at an EGM on 20 July 2006, 
participants may receive a provisional allocation of shares up to 120% of basic salary calculated by reference to the share price at that 
time. Awards under the Plan, which usually vest in three years, are subject to three performance conditions over that three year period. 
These are the per annum increase in net asset value per share compared to the Investment Property Databank UK Annual Index, the increase 
in profitability compared to the Retail Prices Index and Total Shareholder Return (TSR) compared to the median of a comparator group 
of the FTSE Small Cap Index. These targets ensure that the actual awards at the vesting date are aligned closely with the factors that 
drive shareholder return. 

E J Boot is a member of the Henry Boot Staff Pension and Life Assurance Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme. J T Sutcliffe is 
a member of the Henry Boot Group Stakeholder Pension Scheme, a defined contribution scheme. D Greaves is beyond retirement age. 
Both schemes also provide a lump sum death in service benefit and a pension for dependents of members on their death in service and, 
on death after retirement, a pension for dependents. Normal retirement age is 65. 

DiRECTORs’ REmUNERATiON REPORT
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UNAUDiTED sECTiON continueD
five yeaR tSR peRfoRMance
The line graph below shows the cumulative TSR over the last five years for a holding of shares in the Company compared with the 
performance of the FTSE Small Cap Index. This comparator index has been chosen as the most appropriate index, as the Company, 
but for the free float restrictions, would be included as a constituent of this index.

AUDiTED sECTiON
DiRectoRS’ ReMuneRation
The emoluments of the Directors, excluding pension contributions, were:
	 	 	 	 	 	 Taxable	 2007 2006 
	 	 	 	 Salary	 Bonus	 benefits	 Total	 Total 
    £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

J S Reis (Chairman)     33  —  —   33  29 
E J Boot     293   278   27   598  516 
D Greaves     190   181   20   391  364 
J T Sutcliffe     190   181   15   386  94 
J E Brown (Non-executive)     29   —   —   29  22 
M I Gunston (Non-executive)     29   —   —   29  2 
D H Boot (Non-executive)     —   —   —   —  5 
A P Cooper     —   —   —   —  262 
J A B Redgrave (Non-executive)    — — — — 8 

    764 640 62 1,466 1,302

During the year a bonus of £127,000 was paid to a former Director of the Company and of this amount £107,000 was provided for in the 
accounts to 31 December 2006.
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C
orporate governance

AUDiTED sECTiON continueD
lonG-teRM incentive awaRDS
	 	 	 	 	 	 E	J	Boot	 D	Greaves	 J	T	Sutcliffe 
	 	 	 	 	 	 Number	 Number		 Number	 
	 	 	 	 	 	 of	shares	 of	shares	 of	shares

a pRoviSional allocationS of ShaReS at BeGinninG of yeaR  
i)  Performance  
 Performance period: 2004/5/6      
 Market price at date of allocation: 81.2p       87,895 49,925 N/A
 Performance period: 2006/7/8      
 Market price at date of allocation: 162.0p       172,800 111,110 N/A
ii)  Loyalty        
 Awarded 03/05/05      
 Market price at date of award: 100.2p      60,935 34,610 N/A

Total provisional allocations brought forward      321,630 195,645 N/A

B awaRDS of ShaReS in yeaR  
i)  Performance   
 Awarded 23/04/07      
 Market price at date of award: 253.2p      (87,895) (49,925) N/A
ii)  Loyalty      — — —

Total awards in year      (87,895) (49,925) N/A

c pRoviSional allocationS of ShaReS in yeaR  
i)  Performance   
 Performance period: 2007/8/9      
 Date of allocation: 15/05/07        
 Market value at date of allocation: 256.5p      116,955 76,020 76,020
ii)  Loyalty   
 1 for 2 in respect of award given on 23/04/07      
 Market price at date of allocation: 253.2p      43,947 24,962 N/A

Total provisional allocations in year      160,902 100,982 76,020

D pRoviSional allocationS of ShaReS at yeaR enD (a+B+c)  
i)  Performance  
 Performance period: 2006/7/8      172,800 111,110 N/A
 Performance period: 2007/8/9      116,955 76,020 76,020
ii)  Loyalty  
 Awarded 03/05/05      
 Market price at date of award: 100.2p      60,935 34,610 N/A
 Awarded 23/04/07      
 Market price at date of award: 253.2p      43,947 24,962 N/A

Total provisional allocations carried forward      394,637 246,702 76,020

Note: All data prior to 21 May 2007 has been restated to take into account the 4 for 1 bonus issue that took effect on that date.
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AUDiTED sECTiON continueD
ShaRe optionS
Details of options granted to Directors under the Henry Boot PLC 2000 Sharesave Scheme are as follows:
	 	 	 Number	of	options	 	

   At      
	 	 	 1	January	 Granted	 Exercised	 Exercise	 Date	from	  
	 	 	 2007	 during	 during	 price	 which	 Expiry 
	 	 	 (restated)	 year	 year	 (restated)	 exercisable	 date

E J Boot   6,080 — — 155.4p 01/12/09 31/05/10
D Greaves   6,080 — — 155.4p 01/12/09 31/05/10
J T Sutcliffe   6,080 — — 155.4p 01/12/09 31/05/10

Details of the Scheme are set out in note 27.

DiRectoRS’ penSion infoRMation
DefineD Benefit ScheMe
	 	 	 	 	 	 Transfer		 	  
	 	 	 	 Increase	in	 	 value	of	 	  
	 	 	 	 transfer	 Increase	in	 the	increase	 	  
	 Transfer	 Transfer	 	 	value	less	 accrued		 	in	accrued	 Accumulated	 Accumulated 
	 value	at	 value	at	 Increase	 	member	 benefit	in	 	benefit	in	 	benefit	 	benefit 
	 1	January	 31	December	 	in	transfer		 contributions		 excess	of	 excess	of	 	accrued		 	accrued	 
	 2007	 2007	 value	 over	year	 inflation	 inflation	 2007	 2006 
 £’000(1)(5) £’000(1) £’000 £’000 £’000(2) £’000(2) £’000(3) £’000

E J Boot 2,961 3,438 477 447 6 46 230 216

The transfer value has been calculated on the basis of actuarial advice in accordance with Actuarial Guidance Note GN11.

Notes

(1) The transfer value includes increases in revaluation in deferment.

(2)  The increase in accrued benefit during the year is net of any increase for revaluation in deferment and the transfer value thereof 
calculated in accordance with Actuarial Guidance Note GN11 less the actuary’s estimate of the contributions for the year.

(3)  The accumulated benefit accrued at 31 December 2007 represents the pension entitlement which would be preserved if the member 
had left service on 31 December 2007. 

(4)  Members of the scheme have the option to pay Additional Voluntary Contributions into the scheme. Neither these contributions 
nor the resulting benefits are included in the above table.

(5)  The Trustees acting on the advice of the Scheme Actuary have recently reviewed the basis of calculation of transfer values within 
the Scheme. The new basis is expected to provide a higher level of transfer values going forward. The transfer value for E J Boot 
as at 1 January 2007 has been restated on the new basis.

DefineD contRiBution ScheMe
J T Sutcliffe is a member of the defined contribution scheme. Contributions paid by the Company in the year were £36,000. 

On behalf of the Board

J t Sutcliffe
CompANy SeCretAry
18 mArCh 2008

DiRECTORs’ REmUNERATiON REPORT
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We have audited the Group and Parent Company Financial Statements (the ‘Financial Statements’) of Henry Boot PLC for the year 
ended 31 December 2007 which comprise the Group Income Statement, the Group and Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Group and 
Parent Company Statements of Cash Flow, the Group and Parent Company Statements of Recognised Income and Expense, the Group 
and Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity and the related notes. These Financial Statements have been prepared under the 
accounting policies set out therein. We have also audited the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is described as 
having been audited.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit 
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ 
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than 
the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

REsPECTivE REsPONsiBiLiTiEs Of DiRECTORs AND AUDiTORs
The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the Financial Statements in 
accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set 
out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the Financial Statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited in accordance 
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Financial Statements give a true and fair view and whether the Financial Statements and the 
part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and, 
as regards the Group Financial Statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. We also report to you whether, in our opinion, the information 
given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the Financial Statements.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the 
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding Directors’ remuneration and other 
transactions is not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the 2006 
Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not. We are 
not required to consider whether the board’s statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited Financial Statements. 
The other information comprises only the Chairman’s Statement, the Business Review, the Directors’ Report, the unaudited part of the 
Directors’ Remuneration Report and the Corporate Governance Statement. We consider the implications for our report if we become 
aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the Financial Statements. Our responsibilities do not extend 
to any other information.

BAsis Of AUDiT OPiNiON
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. 
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the Financial Statements and the 
part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements 
made by the Directors in the preparation of the Financial Statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the 
Group’s and Company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide 
us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Financial Statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report 
to be audited are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also 
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the Financial Statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration 
Report to be audited.

OPiNiON
In our opinion:

  the Group Financial Statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the state 
of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2007 and of its profit for the year then ended;

  the Parent Company Financial Statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union as applied 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, of the state of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2007;

  the Financial Statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in 
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the Group Financial Statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation; and

 the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the Financial Statements.

hawSonS  pegASuS houSe
regiStered AuditorS  463A gloSSop roAd
18 mArCh 2008  Sheffield S10 2Qd

iNDEPENDENT AUDiTORs’ REPORT
to the MeMBeRS of henRy Boot plc
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    2007 2006 

   Note £’000 £’000

Revenue   1 124,782 142,284

Cost of sales    (82,419) (91,496)

Gross profit    42,363 50,788

Other income    49 27

Administrative expenses    (12,133) (11,479)

Pension expenses    (1,460) (1,855)

    28,819 37,481

Increase in fair value of investment properties    18,063 3,032

Profit on sale of properties under construction    3,379 —

Profit on sale of investment properties    120 1,381

Profit from operations   3 50,381 41,894

Investment income   5 361 641

Finance costs   6 (4,195) (1,740)

pRofit BefoRe tax    46,547 40,795

Taxation   7 (13,677) (14,008)

pRofit foR the yeaR fRoM continuinG opeRationS    32,870 26,787

Attributable to:   

Equity holders of the Parent Company    31,428 25,415

Minority interest    1,442 1,372

    32,870 26,787

BaSic eaRninGS peR oRDinaRy ShaRe*   9 24.5p 19.8p

DiluteD eaRninGS peR oRDinaRy ShaRe*   9 24.1p 19.5p

DiviDenD*   10 5.0p 4.4p

* The comparative figures have been restated in respect of the 4 for 1 bonus issue in May 2007.

GROUP iNCOmE sTATEmENT
foR the yeaR enDeD 31 DeceMBeR 2007
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	 Group	 	 Parent	Company

  2007 2006 2007 2006 

 Note £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

aSSetS     
non-cuRRent aSSetS     
Goodwill 11 3,392 3,595 — —
Property, plant and equipment 12 154,937 99,595 338 271
Investment property 13 81,458 30,130 — —
Investments 14 — — 3,037 3,185
Deferred tax assets 16 8,709 9,941 6,833 8,157

  248,496 143,261 10,208 11,613

cuRRent aSSetS     
Inventories 17 83,403 94,736 — —
Trade and other receivables 15 28,809 17,592 240,057 175,004
Cash and cash equivalents  2,326 15,044 29 13,341

  114,538 127,372 240,086 188,345

liaBilitieS     
cuRRent liaBilitieS     
Trade and other payables 19 55,259 31,830 90,762 86,498
Current tax liability  11,886 11,739 10,646 10,613
Borrowings 21 55,702 2,801 55,197 2,903
Provisions 23 11,291 12,401 — —

  134,138 58,771 156,605 100,014

net cuRRent (liaBilitieS) aSSetS  (19,600) 68,601 83,481 88,331

non-cuRRent liaBilitieS     
Borrowings 21 17,556 28,141 10,000 19,423
Employee benefits 24 22,454 25,813 22,454 25,813
Deferred tax liabilities 16 6,523 5,585 — —
Provisions 23 144 144 124 124

  46,677 59,683 32,578 45,360

net aSSetS  182,219 152,179 61,111 54,584

eQuity     
Share capital 27 13,424 3,005 13,424 3,005
Revaluation reserve 28 4,809 2,908 — —
Retained earnings 28 160,759 142,843 42,086 45,978
Other reserves 28 2,623 2,610 5,601 5,601
Cost of shares held by ESOP trust 14 (1,033) (740) — —

eQuity attRiButaBle to eQuity holDeRS of the paRent coMpany  180,582 150,626 61,111 54,584
Minority interests  1,637 1,553 — —

total eQuity  182,219 152,179 61,111 54,584

On behalf of the Board

e J Boot J t Sutcliffe
direCtor direCtor
18 mArCh 2008 18 mArCh 2008

BALANCE sHEETs
at 31 DeceMBeR 2007
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	 Group	 	 Parent	Company

  2007 2006 2007 2006 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Revaluation of Group occupied property  2,778 140 — —

Deferred tax on property revaluations  (695) (28) — —

Tax on realised surplus  (33) — — —

Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension scheme  3,359 11,918 3,359 11,918

Deferred tax on actuarial gain  (1,457) (3,575) (1,457) (3,575)

Movement in fair value of cash flow hedges  62 506 — —

Share-based payments  (293) 55 — —

Arising on employee share schemes  688 206 688 206

Net gains recognised directly in equity  4,409 9,222 2,590 8,549

Profit (loss) for the year  32,870 26,787 (1,169) (171)

Dividends from subsidiaries  — — 10,987 15,431

Total recognised income and expense for the year  37,279 36,009 12,408 23,809

Profit for the year attributable to:    

Equity holders of the Parent Company  31,428 25,415 (1,169) (171)

Minority interest  1,442 1,372 — —

  32,870 26,787 (1,169) (171)

sTATEmENTs Of CHANGEs iN EqUiTY
at 31 DeceMBeR 2007

	 Group	 	 Parent	Company

  2007 2006 2007 2006 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Profit (loss) for the year  31,428 25,415 (1,169) (171)

Equity dividends  (5,881) (5,016) (5,881) (5,016)

Dividends from subsidiaries  — — 10,987 15,431

Revaluation of Group occupied property  2,778 140 — —

Deferred tax on property revaluations  (695) (28) — —

Tax on realised surplus  (33) — — —

Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension scheme  3,359 11,918 3,359 11,918

Deferred tax on actuarial gain  (1,457) (3,575) (1,457) (3,575)

Movement in fair value of cash flow hedges  62 506 — —

Share-based payments  (293) 55 — —

Arising on employee share schemes  688 206 688 206

Movement in equity  29,956 29,621 6,527 18,793

Equity at 31 December 2006  150,626 121,005 54,584 35,791

eQuity at 31 DeceMBeR 2007  180,582 150,626 61,111 54,584

sTATEmENTs Of RECOGNisED iNCOmE AND EXPENsE
foR the yeaR enDeD 31 DeceMBeR 2007
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	 Group	 	 Parent	Company

  2007 2006 2007 2006 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

caSh flowS fRoM opeRatinG activitieS    

Profit (loss) from operations  50,381 41,894 (4,615) (4,553)

Adjustments for non-cash items:    

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  4,858 4,701 110 119

Property impairment  157 — — —

Goodwill impairment  203 204 — —

Revaluation increase in investment properties  (18,063) (3,032) — —

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (3,701) (263) — —

Gain on disposal of investment properties  (120) (1,381) — —

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital  33,715 42,123 (4,505) (4,434)

Increase in inventories  (23,890) (11,355) — —

(Increase) decrease in receivables  (11,510) 4,847 (64,905) (25,141)

Increase in payables  22,308 2,532 16,714 30,913

Cash generated from operations  20,623 38,147 (52,696) 1,338

Interest received  361 636 9,665 6,049

Interest paid  (3,434) (1,599) (6,116) (3,631)

Taxation  (13,545) (10,976) (11,965) (9,350)

Net cash from operating activities  4,005 26,208 (61,112) (5,594)

caSh flowS fRoM inveStinG activitieS    

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (59,258) (32,228) (202) (114)

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment  6,719 1,391 25 10

Proceeds on disposal of investment properties  739 14,872 — —

Dividends received from subsidiaries  — — 10,987 15,431

  (51,800) (15,965) 10,810 15,327

caSh flowS fRoM financinG activitieS    

Dividends paid – ordinary shares  (5,860) (4,995) (5,860) (4,995)

 – minorities  (1,358) (1,067) — —

 – preference  (21) (21) (21) (21)

  (7,239) (6,083) (5,881) (5,016)

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents  (55,034) 4,160 (56,183) 4,717

Opening net debt  (15,898) (20,058) (8,985) (13,702)

Closing net debt  (70,932) (15,898) (65,168) (8,985)

CAsH fLOw sTATEmENTs
foR the yeaR enDeD 31 DeceMBeR 2007
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The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Group’s IFRS Financial Statements are set out below:

BAsis Of PREPARATiON AND sTATEmENT Of COmPLiANCE
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS adopted by the European Union and therefore comply with 
Article 4 of the EU IAS regulations. They have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of certain properties, 
financial instruments, share-based payments and pension assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair value.

CONsOLiDATiON
The Group Financial Statements are a consolidation of the Financial Statements of the Parent Company and all its subsidiary undertakings.

GOODwiLL
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings is subjected to an impairment test at the balance sheet date and any loss 
is recognised through the Income Statement.

REvENUE RECOGNiTiON
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course 
of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales related taxes.

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy on construction contracts (see below).

Revenue from the sale of land and properties is recognised at the point of legal completion and where title has passed.

CONsTRUCTiON CONTRACTs
Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and contract costs are recognised by 
reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date and profit is that estimated to fairly reflect the 
profit arising up to that date.

The principal method used to recognise the stage of completion of a contract is an internal survey of the work performed.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an 
expense immediately.

BUsiNEss sEGmENTs
The primary format for segment reporting is business segments based on the nature of the Group’s risks and returns which are affected 
predominantly by differences in the type of product or service the Group is providing.

For management purposes the Group currently reports its primary segment information as follows:

 property operations, inclusive of property development, property investment and land management and trading activities;

 construction operations, inclusive of its PFI company, plant hire and regeneration activities; and

  Group overheads and other, comprising central services, pensions, head office administration, in-house leasing and other mainly 
‘not for profit’ activities.

iNvEsTmENT PROPERTiEs
Investment properties, which are properties held to earn rental income and for capital appreciation, are stated at fair value at the balance 
sheet date.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value, based on market values; other than houses, property is then valued 
annually by independent valuers. Houses are held at Directors’ valuation. Any surplus or deficit arising from these valuations is included 
in the Income Statement. When an existing investment property is redeveloped for continued future use as an investment property, 
it remains an investment property whilst in development. 

Investment properties in the course of construction are included in the Balance Sheet at cost, less any recognised impairment loss, 
until construction is complete, at which time the property becomes an investment property and it is subsequently dealt with as above.

PRiNCiPAL ACCOUNTiNG POLiCiEs
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EqUiPmENT
Group occupied properties are stated in the Balance Sheet at their revalued amounts, being the fair value, based on market values less 
any subsequent accumulated depreciation or subsequent accumulated impairment loss. Fair value is determined annually by independent 
valuers. Surpluses on revaluations are transferred to the revaluation reserve. Deficits on revaluations are charged against the revaluation 
reserve to the extent that there are available surpluses relating to the same asset and are otherwise charged to the Income Statement.

In respect of buildings, depreciation is provided where it is considered significant having regard to the estimated remaining useful lives 
and residual values of individual properties.

Plant and vehicles, and office equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over their estimated useful lives, using the straight line method, 
mainly at the following annual rates:

 plant and machinery between 25% and 50%

 motor vehicles  25%

 office equipment  25%

The PFI asset represents the capitalised cost of the initial project, together with the capitalised cost of any additional structures, which 
are then depreciated over the remaining life of the concession or such earlier period as appropriate.

LEAsiNG
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the 
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases and rentals are charged wholly to the Income Statement.

Assets held under finance leases are capitalised in the Balance Sheet and depreciated over their expected useful lives or the lease term, 
whichever is the shorter. The interest element of leasing payments represents a constant proportion of the capital balance outstanding 
and is charged to the Income Statement over the period of the lease.

Where the Group acts as a lessor in the case of operating leases, rental income is recognised on a straight line basis over the term 
of the relevant lease after adjustment for any rent free periods or other incentives.

PARTNERsHiP ACTiviTiEs wiTH LOCAL AUTHORiTiEs
The Group has a 50% interest in the ordinary share capital of Kirklees Henry Boot Partnership Limited, a company incorporated 
in England and formed principally to carry on developments of a regenerative nature in Kirklees.

Government legislation affecting local authorities originally made it necessary for these developments to be carried out through 
a limited liability joint venture company that would, but for the nature of the agreements entered into by the Group and Kirklees 
Metropolitan Council, be accounted for in accordance with IAS 28. The Directors considered, however, that the Group’s investment 
in this joint venture company was not fairly reflected by such accounting treatment. They believed that it was better represented as 
an extension of the Group’s property development activity by including, and appropriately valuing, the net cost of the investment 
in the joint venture company within developments in progress. As such, this treatment avoids conflict with the objectives of IAS 28 
in line with the requirements of IAS 1. This has no financial impact on the reported Group profit and continues to be applied.

iNvENTORiEs
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value which, in the case of land held for development, is deemed to be 
the estimated existing use value where satisfactory planning permission has not yet been obtained.

The cost of options to purchase land is carried at the lower of cost or estimated net realisable value and is subject to regular 
impairment reviews.

Developments in progress comprise all the direct costs incurred in bringing the individual schemes to their present state at the balance 
sheet date less the value of any impairment losses.
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RETiREmENT BENEfiT COsTs
Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit scheme are charged as an expense as they fall due.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit scheme is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with 
actuarial calculations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the period 
in which they occur. They are recognised outside the Income Statement and presented in the Statement of Recognised Income 
and Expense. The net periodic benefit cost comprising the employer share of the service cost and the interest cost, less the expected 
return on assets, is charged to the Income Statement. The Group’s net obligations in respect of the scheme are calculated by estimating the 
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. This is then discounted 
to present value and the fair value of the scheme’s assets is then deducted.

sHARE-BAsED PAYmENTs
Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant and are expensed on a straight line basis over the 
vesting period based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest. Fair value is measured by a Monte Carlo pricing model.

TAXATiON
The tax charge on the profit or loss for the year comprises the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year adjusted for any tax payable or repayable in respect of earlier years. Taxable 
profit differs from net profit as reported in the Income Statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or 
deductible in other years and items that may never be taxable or deductible.

The Group’s liability for current taxation is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance 
sheet date.

Corporation tax liabilities of wholly owned subsidiary companies are transferred to and paid by the Parent Company and credit is given 
by the Parent Company for loss relief surrendered.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in computing taxable profits.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.

DiviDENDs
Dividends are only recognised as a liability in the actual period in which they are declared.

sHARE CAPiTAL
Preference share capital is classified as equity as it is non-redeemable, or is redeemable only at the Company’s option and any 
dividends are discretionary. Dividends on preference share capital classified as equity are recognised as distributions within equity.

fiNANCiAL iNsTRUmENTs
The Group retains such financial instruments as are required, together with retained earnings, in order to finance the Group’s operations.

Financial assets or financial liabilities are recognised by the Group on the Balance Sheet only when the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.

The principal financial instruments are:

  trade and other receivables are measured on initial recognition at nominal value less appropriate adjustments in respect of any 
deferred income;

  cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value;

  trade and other payables are on normal credit terms, are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal values; and

  derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps are occasionally entered into in order to manage interest rate risks arising 
from long-term debt. Where such derivative transactions are executed, gains and losses on the fair value of such arrangements are 
taken either to reserves or to the Income Statement dependent upon the nature of the instrument.

PRiNCiPAL ACCOUNTiNG POLiCiEs
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BORROwiNG COsTs
All borrowing costs are recognised in the Income Statement within the period in which they are incurred.

JUDGEmENTs AND KEY AssUmPTiONs
The critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognised in the Financial Statements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) relate to revenue recognition, construction 
contracts and inventories. All of these are referred to above and each is interpreted by management in the light of IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, 
IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and IAS 2 ‘Inventories’.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, and that 
could have a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities over the ensuing year, are retirement benefit costs, 
goodwill impairment and the impairment review of option costs carried forward in inventories. The estimates used in retirement benefit 
costs are arrived at in conjunction with the scheme’s actuary and advisers, those having the most significant impact being mortality 
rates and bond yields. Determination of goodwill impairment is estimated on the basis of future cash flow generation over the remaining 
concessionary period; whilst impairment relating to option costs is considered individually by management in the light of progress made 
in the planning process, feedback from local planning officers and other external factors that might be considered likely to influence the 
eventual outcome.

imPACT Of sTANDARDs AND iNTERPRETATiONs iN issUE BUT NOT YET EffECTivE
At the date of the authorisation of these Financial Statements, the following Standards and Interpretations were in issue but not yet effective:

  IFRIC 11 ‘Group and Treasury Share Transactions’

  IFRIC 12 ‘Service Concession Arrangements’

  IFRIC 14 ‘Defined Benefit Asset and Minimum Funding Requirements’

  IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’

  IAS 23 ‘Borrowing Costs’

 IAS 27 ‘Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements’

  IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payment-vesting Conditions and Cancellations’

  IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’

  IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’

A review of the impact of these standards, amendments and interpretations is ongoing. At this stage the Directors do not believe that 
they will give rise to any significant financial impact other than IAS 23, where we will be required to capitalise borrowing costs incurred 
on property developments. The financial impact of this will be dependent on the level of expenditure in any year.
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1. REvENUE
Analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:
       2007 2006 
Activity	in	the	United	Kingdom       £’000 £’000

Property rental income and land development       47,790 80,938
Revenue from construction contracts       76,988 61,285
Rentals from operating leases other than property       4 61

       124,782 142,284
Other income       49 27

       124,831 142,311

2. BUsiNEss AND GEOGRAPHiCAL sEGmENTs
   Year	ended	31	December	2007 	 Year	ended	31	December	2006

    inter-   inter-  
  	 External		 segment	 	 External		 segment	  
   sales		 sales		 Total	 sales		 sales		 Total 
Revenue   £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 

Property and land development    47,790 242 48,032 80,938 241 81,179
Construction    76,988 4,546 81,534 61,285 4,950 66,235
Group overheads and other    4 573 577 61 528 589

   124,782 5,361 130,143 142,284 5,719 148,003
Eliminations    — (5,361) (5,361) — (5,719) (5,719)

   124,782 — 124,782 142,284 — 142,284

       2007 2006 
       Total	 Total 
Result        £’000  £’000

Property and land development       47,275 38,586
Construction       7,641 7,610
Group overheads and other       (4,535) (4,302)

Segment result       50,381 41,894
Investment income       361 641
Finance costs       (4,195) (1,740)

pRofit BefoRe tax        46,547 40,795
Taxation       (13,677) (14,008)

pRofit foR the yeaR       32,870 26,787

    	 Capital		 	 Capital	  
    	 additions		 Depreciation		 additions		 Depreciation 
     2007 2007  2006  2006 
Other	information     £’000 £’000  £’000  £’000

Property and land development     89,548 106 32,127 95
Construction     3,995 4,161 4,169 4,002
Group overheads and other     938 591 684 604

     94,481 4,858 36,980 4,701

NOTEs TO THE fiNANCiAL sTATEmENTs
foR the yeaR enDeD 31 DeceMBeR 2007
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2. BUsiNEss AND GEOGRAPHiCAL sEGmENTs continueD
        2007  2006 
Balance	Sheet	 	 	 	 	 	 	 £’000	 £’000

SeGMent aSSetS  
Property and land development       312,922 209,504
Construction       36,812 33,626
Group overheads and other        2,265 2,518

       351,999 245,648
Unallocated assets       11,035 24,985

Total assets       363,034 270,633

  
SeGMent liaBilitieS  
Property and land development       24,769 9,769
Construction       27,381 19,141
Group overheads and other       1,971 1,086

       54,121 29,996
Unallocated liabilities       126,694 88,458

total liaBilitieS       180,815 118,454

total net aSSetS       182,219 152,179

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into three business segments: Property and land development, Construction 
and Group overheads and other.

As operations are carried out entirely within the UK, there is no secondary segmental information. Inter-segmental pricing is done on an 
arms length open market basis.

3. PROfiT fROm OPERATiONs
       2007 2006 
       £’000 £’000

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment – owned assets      4,858 4,701
Impairment of goodwill included in administrative expenses      203 204
Property rentals under operating leases       211 102
Increase in fair value of investment property       (18,063) (3,032)
Cost of inventories recognised as expense       14,140 39,323
Staff costs       21,195 18,798
Auditors’ remuneration:  
– Statutory audit       168 163
– Further assurance services       11 23
– Tax compliance       61 49
Amounts payable to Deloitte & Touche LLP by Road Link (A69) Limited in respect of audit services   6 7
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment       (3,701) (263)

In addition, fees of £10,975 (2006: £10,990) were paid to the auditors in respect of the Henry Boot Staff Pension and Life Assurance 
Scheme. Included in the Group audit fees and expenses paid to the Group’s auditor £39,000 (2006: £38,000) was paid in respect of the 
Parent Company.
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4. sTAff COsTs
       2007 2006 
       £’000 £’000

Wages and salaries       17,865 15,394
Social security costs       1,750 1,489
Defined benefit pension costs       1,460 1,855
Other pension costs       120 60

       21,195 18,798

In addition to the above, the total expense recognised immediately in the Income Statement arising from share-based payment 
transactions was £188,000 (2006: £494,000).

The defined benefit pension costs represent pension expenses of £810,000 and an additional contribution accrued by the Company 
at the year end of £650,000.

Average number of employees during the year was 558 (2006: 481).

5. iNvEsTmENT iNCOmE
       2007 2006 
       £’000 £’000

Interest on bank deposits and similar interest       361 641

6. fiNANCE COsTs
       2007 2006 
       £’000 £’000

Interest on bank overdrafts and loans       4,195 1,740

7. TAX
       2007 2006 
       £’000 £’000

Current tax:  
UK corporation tax on profits for the year       13,659 14,957
Deferred tax       18 (949)

Tax on profit on ordinary activities       13,677 14,008

Corporation tax is calculated at 30% (2006: 30%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. Deferred tax has been calculated at 
28%, being the rate expected to be applicable at the date the actual tax will arise. The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit 
per the Income Statement as follows:
       2007 2006 
       £’000 £’000

Profit before tax       46,547 40,795

  

       % %

Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 30%       30.00 30.00
Effects of:  
Short-term timing differences       — 0.53
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes       0.17 4.26
Capital gains       (1.01) (0.45)
Deferred tax rate change       0.22 —

       29.38 34.34

NOTEs TO THE fiNANCiAL sTATEmENTs
foR the yeaR enDeD 31 DeceMBeR 2007
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8. REsULTs Of PARENT COmPANY
As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the Income Statement of the Parent Company is not presented as part of these 
Financial Statements. The loss dealt with in the Financial Statements, excluding dividends received from subsidiaries of £10,987,000, 
of the Parent Company is £1,169,000 (2006: loss £171,000).

9. EARNiNGs PER ORDiNARY sHARE
       2007 2006 
Earnings       £’000 £’000

Profit for the year       32,870 26,787
Minority interests       (1,442) (1,372)
Preference dividend       (21) (21)

       31,407 25,394

Number	of	shares     2007 2006

Shares in issue     130,244,385 130,244,385
Less shares held by the ESOP on which dividends have been waived   (2,191,420) (2,200,165)

Weighted average number for basic earnings per share     128,052,965 128,044,220
Add back shares held by the ESOP     2,191,420 2,200,165
Adjustment for the effects of dilutive potential ordinary shares    189,475 155,990

Weighted average number for diluted earnings per share    130,433,860 130,400,375

The comparative figures have been restated in respect of the 4 for 1 bonus issue in May 2007.

10. DiviDENDs
       2007 2006 
       £’000 £’000

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in year:  
Preference dividend on cumulative preference shares       21 21
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2006 of 3.32p per share (2005: 2.82p)    4,257 3,612
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2007 of 1.25p per share (2006: 1.08p)    1,603 1,383

       5,881 5,016

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2007 of 3.75p per share (2006: 3.32p) makes a total dividend for the year 
of 5.0p (2006: 4.40p).

The comparative figures have been restated in respect of the 4 for 1 bonus issue in May 2007.

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM and has not been included as a liability in these Financial 
Statements. The total estimated dividend to be paid is £4,802,000.

Notice has been received from Moore Street Securities Limited waiving its right as corporate trustee for the Employee Share Ownership 
Plan (ESOP) to receive all dividends in respect of this and the previous financial year except for a nominal amount.

11. GOODwiLL
       2007 2006 
       £’000 £’000

coSt  
At 31 December 2006 and 2007       4,070 4,070

accuMulateD iMpaiRMent loSSeS  
At 31 December 2006       475 271
Impairment losses for the year       203 204

at 31 DeceMBeR 2007       678 475

caRRyinG aMount  
at 31 DeceMBeR 2007       3,392 3,595

At 31 December 2006       3,595 3,799
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11. GOODwiLL continueD
The Group’s investment in Road Link (A69) Holdings Limited is 61.2%. The goodwill arising on the acquisition is subject to an 
impairment test at the balance sheet date. This company’s subsidiary, Road Link (A69) Limited, operates a PFI concession which 
comprises managing and maintaining the A69 Carlisle to Newcastle trunk road. The company receives payment from the Highways Agency 
based on the number and type of vehicles using the road. The concession has a further 18 years to run, at the end of which the road 
reverts to the Highways Agency. There were no significant changes to these arrangements during the year. Although the Companies Act 1985 
Section 223(5) requires a co-terminous year end, the subsidiary company’s accounting reference date is 31 March in order to align with 
the Highways Agency’s financial year end and hence interim Financial Statements are prepared for incorporation into these consolidated 
Financial Statements.

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EqUiPmENT
	 	 	 	 Properties	 	 Plant	 	  
	 	 	 Land	and	 	under	 	PFI		 and		 Office	  
	 	 	 buildings		 construction		 asset		 vehicles		 equipment		 Total 
Group   £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000

coSt oR faiR value      
At 1 January 2006    7,451  37,822  14,109  25,078  1,777  86,237
Additions at cost   297 27,221 692 3,788 230 32,228
Transfers from inventories   — 4,752 — — — 4,752
Disposals    (500) — — (2,648) (492) (3,640)
Increase in fair value in year    140 — — — — 140

At 31 December 2006   7,388 69,795 14,801 26,218 1,515 119,717
Additions at cost    18 52,599 253 5,174 231 58,275
Transfers from inventories    — 2,322 — — — 2,322
Disposals    (401) (2,121) — (2,404) (60) (4,986)
Increase in fair value in year   2,778 — — — — 2,778

at 31 DeceMBeR 2007   9,783 122,595 15,054 28,988 1,686 178,106

Being:        
Cost    — 122,595 15,054 28,988 1,686 168,323
Fair value at 31 December 2007    9,783 — — — — 9,783

   9,783 122,595 15,054 28,988 1,686 178,106

accuMulateD DepReciation      
At 1 January 2006   36 — 1,393 15,145 1,359 17,933
Charge for year    — — 1,060 3,420 221 4,701
Disposals    — — — (2,020) (492) (2,512)

At 31 December 2006   36 — 2,453 16,545 1,088 20,122
Charge for year   — — 1,073 3,582 203 4,858
Impairment loss   157 — — — — 157
Disposals   — — — (1,911) (57) (1,968)

at 31 DeceMBeR 2007   193 — 3,526 18,216 1,234 23,169

caRRyinG aMount      
at 31 DeceMBeR 2007   9,590 122,595 11,528 10,772 452 154,937

At 31 December 2006    7,352 69,795 12,348 9,673 427 99,595

Land and buildings have been revalued by Jones Lang LaSalle in accordance with the Practice Statements contained in the RICS Appraisal 
and Valuation Standards (the ‘Red Book’) on the basis of market value at £9,490,000. One property has been valued at its impaired value 
of £100,000 by D Greaves, MRICS, MCIOB, a Director of the Company.

On the historical cost basis, the land and buildings would have been included at a cost of £3,641,000 (2006: £3,742,000).

The Group has not entered into any contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment (2006: £Nil).

NOTEs TO THE fiNANCiAL sTATEmENTs
foR the yeaR enDeD 31 DeceMBeR 2007
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EqUiPmENT continueD
	 	 	 	 	 	 Plant	 	  
	 	 	 	 	 	 and	 Office	  
	 	 	 	 	 	 vehicles		 equipment	 Total 
Parent	Company      £’000 £’000 £’000

coSt   
At 1 January 2006      255 471 726
Additions      — 114 114
Disposals      (50) (17) (67)

At 31 December 2006      205 568 773
Additions      51 151 202
Disposals      (49) (34) (83)

at 31 DeceMBeR 2007      207 685 892

DepReciation   
At 1 January 2006      83 357 440
Charge for year      51 68 119
Disposals      (40) (17) (57)

At 31 December 2006      94 408 502
Charge for year      36 74 110
Disposals      (24) (34) (58)

at 31 DeceMBeR 2007      106 448 554

net Book value   
at 31 DeceMBeR 2007      101 237 338

At 31 December 2006      111 160 271

13. iNvEsTmENT PROPERTY
        £’000

faiR value 
At 1 January 2006        40,566
Disposals        (12,847)
Transfers to inventories         (621)
Increase in fair value in year         3,032

At 31 December 2006        30,130
Additions        983
Disposals         (619)
Transfers from inventories        32,901
Increase in fair value in year        18,063

at 31 DeceMBeR 2007        81,458

With the exception of houses, investment properties have been revalued by Jones Lang LaSalle in accordance with the Practice Statements 
contained in the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Standards (the ‘Red Book’) on the basis of market value at £73,293,000. The fair value 
of houses has been determined by D Greaves, MRICS, MCIOB, a Director of the Company, at £8,165,000.

The property rental income earned by the Group from its investment property, all of which is leased out under operating leases, 
amounted to £3,824,000 (2006: £2,550,000). Direct operating expenses arising on the investment property in the year amounted 
to £1,319,000 (2006: £175,000).
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14. iNvEsTmENTs
       2007 2006 
Parent	Company       £’000 £’000

Subsidiary companies  
At 1 January 2006       3,185 3,185
Disposals       (148) —

at 31 DeceMBeR 2007       3,037 3,185

The original cost of shares included above is £1,637,000 (2006: £2,185,000). This has been reduced by provisions for losses where 
necessary and enhanced where the Directors have considered it appropriate to reflect in the valuation increases of a permanent nature 
in the underlying net asset values of subsidiary companies. Such enhancements have been £1,115,000 in 1975 and £1,135,000 in 1989.

Amounts due to and from subsidiary companies are listed in notes 15 and 19. The principal active subsidiary companies are 
listed in note 30. All trading subsidiaries operate in the United Kingdom and are wholly owned, with the exception of Road Link (A69) 
Holdings Limited which is 61.2% owned by Henry Boot Construction (UK) Limited. They are all incorporated in the United Kingdom.

All subsidiary companies have only one class of issued share capital.

coSt of ShaReS helD By the eSop tRuSt
       2007 2006 
Group       £’000 £’000

At 31 December 2006       740 795
Additions       355 —
Disposals       (62) (55)

at 31 DeceMBeR 2007       1,033 740

Quoted investments represent own shares held by the Henry Boot PLC Employee Trust as an Employee Share Ownership Plan to provide 
an incentive to greater ownership of shares in the Company by its employees. The Company has loaned £1,033,229 to the trustee, interest 
free, which enabled it to purchase Henry Boot PLC ordinary shares.

At 31 December 2007, the trustee held 2,191,420 shares with a cost of £1,033,229 and a market value of £3,692,542. Of these shares, 
2,068,584 were committed to satisfy existing grants by the Company under the 1996 and 2006 Henry Boot PLC Long-Term Share Incentive 
Plans and the Henry Boot PLC 2000 Sharesave Scheme. In accordance with IAS 32 these shares are deducted from shareholders’ funds. 
Under the terms of the trust, the trustee has waived all but a nominal dividend on the shares it holds.

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEivABLEs
	 	 	 	 	 Group	 	 Parent	Company

     2007 2006 2007 2006 
     £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Due within one yeaR    
Amounts due from construction contract customers     183 1,063 — —
Trade receivables     28,626 16,529 628 138
Amounts owed by Group undertakings     — — 239,429 174,866

     28,809 17,592 240,057 175,004

NOTEs TO THE fiNANCiAL sTATEmENTs
foR the yeaR enDeD 31 DeceMBeR 2007
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15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEivABLEs continueD
paRent coMpany
Amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured and are stated net of provisions for irrecoverable amounts of £35,614,000 of  
which £13,000 has been provided in the year, £220,000 has been released in the year and £6,690,000 has been recovered in the year.

cReDit RiSk
The Group’s principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, and trade and other receivables, which represent the Group’s 
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the Balance Sheet are net of allowances 
for doubtful receivables, estimated by the Group’s management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current 
economic environment.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and customers.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit 
rating agencies.

16. DEfERRED TAX
DefeRReD tax aSSet
	 	 	 	 	 Accelerated	 	 Other	  
	 	 	 	 	 capital	 Employee	 timing	  
	 	 	 	 	 allowances		 benefits		 differences		 Total 
Group     £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000

At 1 January 2006     68 11,040 1,904 13,012
Recognised in income     220 279 5 504
Recognised in equity     — (3,575) — (3,575)

At 31 December 2006     288 7,744 1,909 9,941
Recognised in income     61 — 164 225
Recognised in equity     — (1,457) — (1,457)

at 31 DeceMBeR 2007     349 6,287 2,073 8,709

    
Parent	Company    

At 1 January 2006     49  11,040  32  11,121
Recognised in income     (14) 279 346 611
Recognised in equity     — (3,575) — (3,575)

At 31 December 2006     35 7,744 378 8,157
Recognised in income     (6) — 139 133
Recognised in equity     — (1,457) — (1,457)

at 31 DeceMBeR 2007     29 6,287 517 6,833

DefeRReD tax liaBility
	 	 	 	 	 Accelerated	 	 Other	  
	 	 	 	 	 capital	 Property	 timing	  
	 	 	 	 	 allowances	 revaluations	 differences	 Total 
Group     £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

At 1 January 2006     — (6,000)  — (6,000)
Recognised in income     — 445 — 445
Recognised in equity     — (30) — (30)

At 31 December 2006     — (5,585) — (5,585)
Recognised in income     — (243) — (243)
Recognised in equity     — (695) — (695)

at 31 DeceMBeR 2007     — (6,523) — (6,523)
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17. iNvENTORiEs
       2007 2006 
Group       £’000 £’000

Developments in progress       9,942 44,419
Land held for development       73,461 50,317

       83,403 94,736

Within land held for development £797,000 (2006: £2,198,000) has been written-down and recognised as an expense in the year.

Previous write-downs amounting to £80,000 (2006: £1,332,000) have been reversed and reduced the amount of inventories recognised 
as an expense in the year. The reversals relate to costs previously provided where planning permission for development was doubtful 
but where prospects have now significantly improved or actual planning consent has been granted.

18. CONsTRUCTiON CONTRACTs
       2007 2006 
       £’000 £’000

Contracts in progress at 31 December 2007:  
Amounts due from contract customers included in trade and other receivables     183 1,063
Amounts due to contract customers included in trade, other payables and provisions    (8,298) (3,315)

       (8,115) (2,252)

Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses to date     197,484 228,020
Less: progress billings       (205,599) (230,272)

       (8,115) (2,252)

At 31 December 2007, retentions held by customers for contract work amounted to £876,000 (2006: £1,183,000). Advances received 
from customers for contract work amounted to £8,298,000 (2006: £3,243,000).

At 31 December 2007, amounts of £Nil (2006: £Nil) included in trade and other receivables and arising from construction contracts are 
due for settlement after more than twelve months.

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLEs
	 	 	 	 	 Group	 	 Parent	Company

     2007 2006 2007 2006 
     £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Trade payables, accruals and deferred expenditure     55,259 31,830 3,508 3,230
Amounts owed to Group undertakings     — — 87,254 83,268

     55,259 31,830 90,762 86,498

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value.

20. CAPiTAL RisK mANAGEmENT
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:

  to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and have the resources to provide returns for shareholders 
and benefits for other stakeholders

 to maximise returns to shareholders by allocating capital across our businesses based on the level of expected return and risk

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in 
the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital 
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new share or sell 
assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of net debt to equity. Net debt is total debt less cash and cash equivalents, at 31 December 2007 
this was £70.9m. Equity comprises all components of equity and at 31 December 2007 this was £182.2m.

During 2007 the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from 2006, was to maintain the debt to equity ratio below 50%. This level was 
chosen so as to ensure we could access very flexible and inexpensive funding without recourse to debt secured with specific security.

During 2008 it is anticipated that the Group will utilise a higher level of its own resources rather than externally sourced debt. This is 
intentional and reflects the Group’s assessment that lower levels of debt and therefore higher levels of unused facilities are appropriate 
for a property company at this stage in the economic cycle.

NOTEs TO THE fiNANCiAL sTATEmENTs
foR the yeaR enDeD 31 DeceMBeR 2007
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21. BORROwiNGs
	 	 	 	 	 Group	 	 Parent	Company

     2007 2006 2007 2006 
     £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Bank overdrafts      3,000 1,638 3,658 2,903
Bank loans      70,258 29,304 61,539 19,423

     73,258 30,942 65,197 22,326

The borrowings are repayable as follows:    
On demand or within one year     55,702 2,801 55,197 2,903
In the second year     11,162 1,162 10,000 —
In the third to fifth years inclusive     3,488 22,910 — 19,423
After five years     2,906 4,069 — —

     73,258 30,942 65,197 22,326

Due within one year     55,702 2,801 55,197 2,903
Due after one year     17,556 28,141 10,000 19,423

     73,258 30,942 65,197 22,326

The weighted average interest rates paid were as follows:
       2007 2006 
       % %

Bank overdrafts       6.46 5.64
Bank loans – floating rate       6.36 5.38
Bank loans – fixed rate (relating to Road Link (A69) Limited)      7.37 7.37

Bank loans of £8,719,000 are arranged at fixed interest rates and expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Other borrowings are 
arranged at floating rates, thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Based on approximate average borrowings during 2007, 
a 1% increase in interest rates would decrease profitability before tax by £426,000.

The fair value of the Group’s borrowings are not considered to be materially different from the carrying amounts.

Interest on floating rate borrowings is arranged for periods from overnight to three months. The Road Link (A69) Limited bank loan is 
secured by a specific charge over the freehold and leasehold properties of the Company and fixed and floating charges over the assets 
of that Company and is without recourse to the rest of the Group. It is repayable in six-monthly instalments that commenced in the year 
ended 31 March 1999 and is repayable by 31 March 2015. 

Other bank loans are unsecured.

At 31 December 2007, the Group had available £18,128,000 (2006: £9,500,000) undrawn committed borrowing facilities and £24,175,000 
(2006: £17,597,000) undrawn uncommitted borrowing facilities.

Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand.
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22. DERivATivE fiNANCiAL iNsTRUmENTs
inteReSt Rate Swap
At 31 December 2007, an interest rate swap transaction was in place covering a bank loan of £8,719,000 (2006: £9,881,000) at a fixed 
rate of 7.37% payable semi-annually. The termination date of the swap arrangement is 31 March 2015.

The fair value of the swap arrangement at 31 December 2007 was £415,000 (2006: £477,000) giving rise to a hedge reserve deducted 
from other reserves.

23. PROvisiONs
	 	 	 	 	 Road	 Bonds	and	 	  
	 	 	 	 	 maintenance	 guarantees	 Other	 Total 
Group     £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

At 31 December 2006    
Included in current liabilities     865 — 11,536 12,401
Included in non-current liabilities     — 124 20 144

     865 124 11,556 12,545
Additional provisions in year     802 — — 802
Unused provision reversed in year     — — (1,000) (1,000)

Utilisation of provisions     (840) — (72) (912)

at 31 DeceMBeR 2007     827 124 10,484 11,435

Included in current liabilities     827 — 10,464 11,291
Included in non-current liabilities     — 124 20 144

     827 124 10,484 11,435

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Bonds	and 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 guarantees 
Parent	Company        £’000

At 31 December 2006 and 2007        124

The road maintenance provision represents management’s best estimate of the Group’s liability under a five-year rolling programme for 
the maintenance of the Group’s PFI asset.

The bonds and guarantees provision represents a claim that has been made against the Parent Company, the liability for which is subject 
to an on demand bond. The provision represents the estimated loss likely to arise in the event that the claim is not settled and a call 
under the bond is made.

Any liabilities where the Directors anticipate that a present obligation would result in a future outflow of resources, including legal and 
regulatory penalties or claims, are taken into account in the Financial Statements. In accordance with the dispensations within IAS 37, 
paragraph 92, any such matters are not disclosed for reasons of commercial confidentiality.

NOTEs TO THE fiNANCiAL sTATEmENTs
foR the yeaR enDeD 31 DeceMBeR 2007
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24. EmPLOYEE BENEfiTs
DefineD contRiBution penSion ScheMe
The Group operates a defined contribution scheme for all qualifying employees. The scheme is administered and managed by the 
Norwich Union and the Group matches member contributions, providing a minimum of 3% of salary is paid by the employee, on a pound 
for pound basis up to a maximum of 8%.

The total cost charged to income of £120,000 (2006: £60,000) represents contributions payable to the scheme by the Group.

DefineD Benefit penSion ScheMe
The Group operates a defined benefit pension scheme (‘scheme’) for eligible employees which is funded to provide for future pension 
liabilities, including anticipated increases in earnings and pensions. The assets of the scheme are held in a fund independently 
administered by trustees. Contributions are determined by a qualified actuary on the basis of triennial valuations using the projected unit 
method. The most recent triennial valuation was carried out as at 1 January 2007. The results of that valuation have been projected to 
31 December 2007 and then recalculated based on the following assumptions:
       2007 2006 
       % %

Rate of inflation       3.30 3.00
Rate of general increases in salaries       4.75 4.45
Rate in increase to pensions in payment liable for Limited Price Indexation (LPI)     3.20 2.80
Revaluation of deferred pensions       3.30 3.00
Liabilities discount rate       5.90 5.20
Expected rate of return on scheme assets       6.65 6.96

The overall expected rate of return is determined as follows:

  the assumption for return on equities of 7.6% is based upon gilt yields of 4.9% (commonly adopted as a ‘risk-free rate’) prevailing 
at the measurement date plus an equity risk premium of 2.7%

  the assumption for return on bonds represents the expected return on the current portfolio of gilts and corporate bonds as at the 
measurement date

  the assumption for return on cash is the bank base rate applicable at the measurement date and represents the expected returns 
on the scheme’s cash holdings

 property is generally assumed to have the same expected return as equities

       2007 2006 
Mortality	assumptions       years	 years

Retiring today:  
Male       19.7 16.9
Female       22.7 19.9
Retiring in 20 years:  
Male       21.0 18.6
Female       24.0 21.6

The mortality assumptions are consistent with the assumptions used in the most recent triennial valuation.

The post-retirement mortality tables used were the PA92 tables based on individual members’ dates of birth.
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24. EmPLOYEE BENEfiTs continueD
DefineD Benefit penSion ScheMe continueD
Amounts recognised in income in respect of the scheme are as follows:
       2007 2006 
       £’000 £’000

Current service cost       (1,472) (1,768)
Interest cost       (7,311) (6,836)
Expected return on scheme assets       7,973 6,749
Past service cost       — —

Pension expenses       (810) (1,855)

Actuarial gains and losses have been reported in the Statements of Recognised Income and Expense of £3,359,000 (2006: £11,918,000).

The actual return on scheme assets was £7,991,000 (2006: £11,556,000).

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Group’s obligations in respect of the scheme is as follows:
       2007 2006 
       £’000 £’000

Present value of scheme obligations       144,260 141,580
Fair value of scheme assets       121,806 115,767

       22,454 25,813

This amount is presented in the Balance Sheet as follows:
       2007 2006 
       £’000 £’000

Current liabilities       — —
Non-current liabilities       22,454 25,813

       22,454 25,813

Movements in the present value of scheme obligations in the current year were as follows:
       2007 2006 
       £’000 £’000

At 31 December 2006       141,580 142,982
Service cost       1,472 1,768
Interest cost       7,311 6,836
Contributions from scheme members       433 464
Actuarial gain        (2,653) (7,111)
Past service cost       — —
Benefits paid       (3,883) (3,359)

at 31 DeceMBeR 2007       144,260 141,580

Movements in the present value of fair value of scheme assets in the current year were as follows:
       2007 2006 
       £’000 £’000

At 31 December 2006       115,767 106,183
Expected return on scheme assets       7,973 6,773
Actuarial gain       18 4,783
Employer contributions       1,498 923
Contributions from scheme members       433 464
Benefits paid       (3,883) (3,359)

at 31 DeceMBeR 2007       121,806 115,767

NOTEs TO THE fiNANCiAL sTATEmENTs
foR the yeaR enDeD 31 DeceMBeR 2007
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24. EmPLOYEE BENEfiTs continueD
DefineD Benefit penSion ScheMe continueD
The analysis of scheme assets and the expected rate of return at 31 December 2007 was as follows:
     rate of return 	 Market	value

     2007 2006 2007 2006 
     % % £’000 £’000

Equities     7.60 7.60 77,420 87,487
Bonds     4.90 5.00 39,869 27,920
Cash     5.50 4.75 4,517 360

       121,806 115,767

Included in equities are 2,250,000 (2006: 2,750,000) ordinary 10p shares in Henry Boot PLC with a value at the year end of £3,791,250 
(2006: £5,912,500).

The history of experience adjustments is as follows:
    2007	 2006	 2005	 2004	 2003 
    £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Present value of scheme obligations    (144,260) (141,580) (142,982) (120,958) (106,018)
Fair value of scheme assets    121,806 115,767 106,183 88,521 81,693

Deficit in the scheme    (22,454) (25,813) (36,799) (32,437) (24,325)

Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities    1,853 (2,935) — (1,009) 1,112
Percentage of scheme liabilities    1% (2%) — (1%) 1%
Experience adjustments on scheme assets    18 4,783 14,045 4,052 3,111
Percentage of scheme assets    — 4% 13% 5% 4%

The estimated amount of contributions expected to be paid to the scheme during the current financial year is £1,650,000.

In January 2008 the Company provided the trustees of the scheme with an ‘on demand’ letter of credit for £7,000,000.

25. OPERATiNG LEAsE COmmiTmENTs
       2007 2006 
       £’000 £’000

Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised in the Income Statement for the year   211 102

At 31 December 2007, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating 
leases which fall due as follows:
       2007 2006 
       £’000 £’000

Within one year       116 10
In the second to fifth years inclusive       167 51
After five years       — 15

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office properties. The rents payable are subject 
to renegotiation at various intervals specified in the leases.
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26. RELATED PARTY TRANsACTiONs
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are 
disclosed below:
       2007 2006 
Parent	Company       £’000 £’000

Management charges receivable       570 570
Interest receivable       9,546 5,713
Interest payable       (3,910) (2,812)
Rents payable       (189) (126)
Recharge of expenses       35 57

Transactions between the Group and its associate are disclosed below.

As explained in the accounting policies, the Group has a 50% interest in the ordinary share capital of Kirklees Henry Boot Partnership 
Limited (KHBP). The Group’s investment included in developments in progress comprised equity of £250,000 (2006: £250,000) and 
secured loans of £Nil (2006: £1,830,500), against which a provision of £228,500 (2006: £59,000) has been made. Interest of £Nil 
(2006: £Nil) was charged during 2007 on the outstanding loans.

At the balance sheet date £Nil (2006: £Nil) in respect of interest was due to the Group from KHBP.

ReMuneRation of key ManaGeMent peRSonnel
The remuneration of the Directors, who are key management personnel of the Group, is set out below in aggregate for each of the 
categories specified in IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’. Further information about the remuneration of individual Directors is provided 
in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 36 to 38. 
       2007 2006 
       £’000 £’000

Short-term employee benefits       1,466 1,302
Employers NIC       195 177

       1,661 1,479

27. sHARE CAPiTAL
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Allotted,	issued 
	 	 	 	 	 Authorised	 	 and	fully	paid

     2007  2006  2007  2006 
     £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000

5.25% cumulative preference shares of £1 each     400 400 400 400
130,244,385 ordinary shares of 10p each (2006: 26,048,877)    19,600 3,600 13,024 2,605

     20,000 4,000 13,424 3,005

The Company has one class of ordinary share which carries no rights to fixed income but which entitles the holder thereof to receive 
notice and attend and vote at general meetings, or appoint a proxy to attend on their behalf.

A 4 for 1 bonus issue by way of a capitalisation of reserves was approved by shareholders on 17 May 2007 and dealing in the new 
ordinary shares commenced on 21 May 2007.

Subject to Board approval, the preference shares carry the right to a cumulative preferential dividend payable half yearly at the rate of 
5.25% per annum. They also carry a right, in priority to the ordinary equity, on a return of assets on a winding up or reduction of capital, 
to repayment of capital together with the arrears of any preferential dividend. With the exception of any resolution proposed to directly 
affect the rights or privileges of the holders of the preference shares, the holders thereof are not entitled to receive notice, be present 
or vote at any general meeting of the Company.

NOTEs TO THE fiNANCiAL sTATEmENTs
foR the yeaR enDeD 31 DeceMBeR 2007
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27. sHARE CAPiTAL continueD
ShaRe-BaSeD payMentS
The Company operates the following share-based payment arrangements:

a) the henRy Boot plc 2000 ShaReSave ScheMe
This savings related share option scheme was approved by shareholders in 2000 and is subject to HMRC rules. The first grant of options 
to participating employees was made on 1 November 2006 at a price of 155.4p (restated), a discount of just under 15% of the prevailing 
market price. There are no performance criteria attached to the exercise of these options. Options are normally capable of exercise for a 
six month period three years from the date of grant. The right to exercise options terminates if a participating employee leaves the Group, 
subject to certain exceptions. A total of 604,285 (restated) options were granted and by the year end 44,445 had lapsed, with 160 having 
been exercised, giving 559,680 as being outstanding.

B) the 1996 henRy Boot plc lonG-teRM incentive plan
This Plan was approved by shareholders in 1996 and operated for ten years. Details of the Plan and the vesting requirements are set out 
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 37.

c) the henRy Boot 2006 lonG-teRM incentive plan
This Plan was approved by shareholders at an EGM held on 20 July 2006. Details of the Plan and the vesting requirements are also set 
out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 37.

In respect of b) and c) above, the aggregate total of movements in provisional allocations of shares and award of shares is as follows:
       2007 2006 
       Number	 Number

Provisional allocations of shares at 1 January 2007       1,138,445 834,945
Lapses of provisional allocations of shares in year       (79,880) (47,215)
Awards of shares in year       (183,585) (163,635)
Provisional allocations of shares in year       633,924 514,350

Provisional allocations of shares at 31 December 2007       1,508,904 1,138,445

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the period was 253p (2006: 167p).

The comparative figures have been restated in respect of the 4 for 1 bonus issue in May 2007.

faiR value
Fair value is measured by a Monte Carlo pricing model using the following assumptions:
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 LTIP	 Sharesave

Weighted average exercise price     Nil 155.4p
Expected volatility     7.50% 17.30%
Expected life     3 to 6 years 3 years
Risk-free rate     4.23% to 5.42% 4.82%
Expected dividend yield     2.92% to 5.08% 2.92%

The weighted average fair value of share options granted during the year was 198p (2006: 144p restated).
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28. REsERvEs
	 	 Other

	 	 Property	 Retained	 Capital	 Share	 	 	 Total 
	 	 revaluation	 earnings	 redemption	 premium	 Capital	 Other	 other 
Group  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

At 1 January 2006  2,916 113,775 271 2,563 253 (983)  2,104
Profit retained  — 25,415 — — — — —
Dividends paid  — (5,016) — — — — —
Movements in fair value of cash flow hedge  — — — — — 506 506
Increase in fair value in year  112 — — — — — —
Realised revaluation surplus  (120) 120 — — — — —
Arising on employee share schemes  — 206 — — — — —
Unrecognised actuarial gain  — 11,918 — — — — —
Deferred tax on actuarial gain  — (3,575) — — — — —

At 31 December 2006  2,908 142,843 271 2,563 253 (477) 2,610
Profit retained  — 31,428 — — — — —
Dividends paid  — (5,881) — — — — —
Movements in fair value of cash flow hedge  — — — — — 62 62
Increase in fair value in year  2,083 — — — — — —
Realised revaluation surplus  (182) 182 — — — — —
Tax on realised surplus  — (33) — — — — —
Arising on employee share schemes  — 688 — — — — —
Unrecognised actuarial gain  — 3,359 — — — — —
Deferred tax on actuarial gain  — (1,457) — — — — —
Capitalisation on bonus share issue  — (10,419) — — — — —
Transfer from capital reserve  — 49 — — (49) — (49)

at 31 DeceMBeR 2007  4,809 160,759 271 2,563 204 (415) 2,623

	 	 Other

	 	 	 Retained	 Capital	 Share	 	 Investment	 Total 
	 	 	 earnings	 redemption	 premium	 Capital	 revaluation	 other 
Parent	Company   £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

At 1 January 2006   27,185 271 2,563 1,632 1,135 5,601
Loss retained   (171) — — — — —
Dividends from subsidiaries   15,431 — — — — —
Dividends paid   (5,016) — — — — —
Unrecognised actuarial gain   11,918 — — — — —
Deferred tax on actuarial gain   (3,575) — — — — —
Arising from employee share schemes   206 — — — — —

At 31 December 2006   45,978 271 2,563 1,632 1,135 5,601
Loss retained   (1,169) — — — — —
Dividends from subsidiaries   10,987 — — — — —
Dividends paid   (5,881) — — — — —
Unrecognised actuarial gain   3,359 — — — — —
Deferred tax on actuarial gain   (1,457) — — — — —
Arising from employee share schemes   688 — — — — —
Capitalisation on bonus share issue   (10,419) — — — — —

at 31 DeceMBeR 2007   42,086 271 2,563 1,632 1,135 5,601

NOTEs TO THE fiNANCiAL sTATEmENTs
foR the yeaR enDeD 31 DeceMBeR 2007
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29. GUARANTEEs AND CONTiNGENCiEs
The Parent Company has guaranteed the performance of certain contracts entered into by Group undertakings in the ordinary course 
of business.

The Group has contingent liabilities under certain contracts undertaken in the ordinary course of business which are impracticable 
to quantify. Any liabilities which the Directors reasonably anticipate will crystallise are taken into account in the Financial Statements.

30. ADDiTiONAL iNfORmATiON – PRiNCiPAL ACTivE sUBsiDiARiEs
Details of the Company’s principal active subsidiaries, all of which are incorporated in England and are consolidated in the Group 
Financial Statements, at 31 December 2007 are as follows:
Name	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Activity

Banner Plant Limited   Plant hire
First National Housing Trust Limited   Property investment
Hallam Land Management Limited   Land trading
Henry Boot Chesterfield Limited   Property investment
Henry Boot Construction (UK) Limited   Construction
Henry Boot Developments Limited   Property development and investment
Henry Boot Developments (Warrington) Limited   Property development
Henry Boot Estates Limited   Property investment
Henry Boot ‘K’ Limited   Property development
Henry Boot Port Talbot Limited   Property development
Henry Boot Projects Limited  Property development 
Henry Boot Whittington Limited  Property investment
Road Link (A69) Limited  PFI road maintenance
Winter Ground Limited  Property development and investment

All are ultimately 100% owned by the Company, with the exception of Road Link (A69) Limited which is 61.2% owned.

31. APPROvAL Of fiNANCiAL sTATEmENTs
The Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2008 and authorised for issue.
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THE DiRECTORs
Henry Boot PLC 
Banner Cross Hall 
Ecclesall Road South 
Sheffield S11 9PD

31 December 2007

Gentlemen 

HENRY BOOT PLC
GRoup pRopeRty poRtfolio valuation – 31 DeceMBeR 2007

In accordance with your written instructions, we have valued the various freehold and leasehold properties held by Henry Boot PLC 
and its subsidiary companies, for accounts purposes as at 31 December 2007. The valuations have been made in accordance with the 
Practice Statements contained within the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Standards (the ‘Red Book’), in our capacity as External Valuers, 
on the basis of Market Value. No allowances have been made for expenses of realisation or for taxation that might arise in the event 
of a disposal and our valuations are expressed as exclusive of any Value Added Tax that may become chargeable. Each property has 
been considered as if free and clear of all mortgages or other charges which may have been secured thereon. Where appropriate, 
the properties have been valued subject to and with the benefit of any lettings which have been disclosed. 

Having regard to the foregoing, we are of the opinion that the aggregate market value of the freehold and leasehold interests owned 
by Henry Boot PLC and its subsidiaries, as at 31 December 2007, is:

Freehold  £75,633,000

Leasehold  £7,150,000

total £82,783,000

In accordance with our normal practice, we confirm that our valuations have been prepared for the Directors of Henry Boot PLC and 
for the purpose to which this certificate refers. No responsibility is accepted to any third party in respect of the information or advice 
contained herein, except in circumstances where our prior written approval has been granted.

Yours faithfully 

peteR J haGue 
direCtor
for ANd oN behAlf of JoNeS lANg lASAlle limited 

PROPERTY vALUERs’ REPORT
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N
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Notice is hereby given that the eighty-eighth AGM of Henry Boot PLC will be held at Baldwins Omega, Brincliffe Hill, Off Psalter Lane, 
Sheffield, S11 9DF on Wednesday 14 May 2008, at 11.30am for the following purposes:

REsOLUTiON 1
To receive the Report of the Directors and the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2007.

REsOLUTiON 2
To declare a final dividend on the ordinary shares.

REsOLUTiON 3
To re-appoint D Greaves as a Director, who retires by rotation.

REsOLUTiON 4
To re-appoint J E Brown as a Director, who retires by rotation.

REsOLUTiON 5
To re-appoint Hawsons as auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix the auditors’ remuneration.

anD
To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolutions, which will be proposed as to Resolutions 6 and 9 as ordinary resolutions 
of the Company and as to Resolutions 7 and 8 as special resolutions of the Company. Resolution 9 is an advisory shareholder vote on the 
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be made in accordance with the requirements of The Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002.

REsOLUTiON 6
that:
(a)  in accordance with Article 7 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors be authorised to allot relevant securities up to 

a maximum nominal amount of £4,341,479;

(b)  this authority shall expire on 13 May 2013; and

(c) all previous authorities under Section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 shall cease to have effect.

REsOLUTiON 7
that:
(a)  in accordance with Article 8 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors be given power to allot equity securities for cash;

(b)  for the purposes of paragraph (1)(b) of Article 8, the nominal amount to which this power is limited is £650,000; and

(c)   this power shall expire on 13 May 2013, and shall apply in relation to a sale of shares which is an allotment of equity securities by 
virtue of Section 94 (3A) of the Companies Act 1985 as if in the first paragraph of Article 8 of the Company’s Articles of Association, 
the words “Subject to the board being generally authorised to allot relevant securities in accordance with section 80 of the Act,” 
were omitted.

REsOLUTiON 8
That the Company be and it is hereby generally and unconditionally authorised to make market purchases (within the meaning 
of Section 163(3) of the Companies Act 1985) of ordinary shares of 10p each in the capital of the Company (‘ordinary shares’) 
provided that:

(a)  the maximum number of ordinary shares hereby authorised to be purchased is 11,055,000;

(b)  the minimum price which may be paid for an ordinary share is 10p;

(c)  the maximum price which may be paid for an ordinary share is not more than 5% above the average of the middle market quotations 
for an ordinary share as derived from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the five business days before the purchase 
is made;

(d)  the authority hereby conferred shall expire at the conclusion of the next AGM or, if earlier, on 13 August 2009; and

(e)   the Company may make a contract to purchase ordinary shares under the authority hereby conferred prior to the expiry of such authority 
which will or may be executed wholly or partly after the expiry of such authority.

NOTiCE Of ANNUAL GENERAL mEETiNG
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REsOLUTiON 9
That the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 December 2007 as set out in the 2007 Annual Report and Financial 
Statements of the Company be and is hereby approved.

By order of the Board

J t Sutcliffe
CompANy SeCretAry
bANNer CroSS hAll
Sheffield S11 9pd
9 April 2008

NOTEs
Only holders of ordinary shares in the Company are entitled to attend and vote at the meeting.

A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint one or more persons as proxies to exercise all or any of his rights to attend, 
speak and vote at the meeting. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A member may appoint more than one proxy in relation 
to the meeting provided that each proxy is appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by him. To appoint 
more than one proxy, you will need to complete a separate proxy form in relation to each appointment. Additional forms may be obtained 
by photocopying the proxy form. You will need to state clearly on each proxy form the number of shares in relation to which the proxy is 
appointed. A failure to specify the number of shares each proxy appointment relates to or specifying a number in excess of those held by 
the member may result in the proxy appointment being invalid. You can only appoint a proxy using the procedures set out in these notes 
and the notes to the proxy form. The right of a member under section 325 of the Companies Act 2006 (‘2006 Act’) to appoint a proxy 
does not apply to a person nominated to enjoy information rights under section 146 of the 2006 Act.

The appointment of a proxy will not preclude a member from attending and voting in person at the meeting if he or she so wishes.

A form of proxy for use at the meeting is enclosed with the notice issued to holders of ordinary shares. The form of proxy should 
be completed in accordance with the notes on it and should be received by the Company’s registrars, Capita Registrars Limited, 
The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU, no later than 48 hours before the time appointed for the meeting.

In accordance with Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001, only those members entered on the Company’s 
register of members not later than 11.30am on 12 May 2008 or, if the meeting is adjourned, shareholders entered on the Company’s 
register of members not later than 48 hours before the time fixed for the adjourned meeting shall be entitled to attend and vote at 
the meeting.

In order to facilitate voting by corporate representatives at the meeting, arrangements will be put in place at the meeting so that:

(a)  if a corporate shareholder has appointed the chairman of the meeting as its corporate representative with instructions to vote on a 
poll in accordance with the directions of all of the other corporate representatives for that shareholder at the meeting, then on a poll 
those corporate representatives will give voting directions to the chairman and the chairman will vote (or withhold a vote) as corporate 
representative in accordance with those directions; and 

(b)  if more than one corporate representative for the same corporate shareholder attends the meeting but the corporate shareholder 
has not appointed the chairman of the meeting as its corporate representative, a designated corporate representative will be 
nominated, from those corporate representatives who attend, who will vote on a poll and the other corporate representatives will give 
voting directions to that designated corporate representative.

Corporate shareholders are referred to the guidance issued by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators on proxies 
and corporate representatives (http://www.icsa.org.uk/) for further details of this procedure. The guidance includes a sample form 
of representation letter if the chairman is being appointed as described in (a) above.

Where a copy of this notice is being received by a person who has been nominated to enjoy information rights under section 146 
of the 2006 Act (‘nominee’):

(a)  the nominee may have a right under an agreement between the nominee and the member by whom he was appointed, 
to be appointed, or to have someone else appointed, as a proxy for the meeting; or

(b)  if the nominee does not have any such right or does not wish to exercise such right, the nominee may have a right under 
any such agreement to give instructions to the member as to the exercise of voting rights.

NOTiCE Of ANNUAL GENERAL mEETiNG



the commitment of the Henry Boot Group to environmental issues 
is	reflected	in	this	annual	report	which	has	been	printed	on	Revive	75	Silk,	
a	recycled	paper	stock.	It	contains	50%	de-inked	post	consumer	waste,	
25%	pre-consumer	waste	and	25%	virgin	wood	fibre.



Further copies of the 2007 Annual report 
and Financial Statements may be obtained 
from	the	Company	Secretary.

HENRY BOOT PLC
Registered	office: 
Banner Cross Hall 
Sheffield	S11	9PD

Registered	in	England	No.	160996

t:	0114	255	5444 
f:	0114	258	5548 
e:	cosec@henryboot.co.uk 
www.henryboot.co.uk
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